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Our responsibility toward the environment begins with small, 
everyday matters. It continues with large-scale investments which 

guarantee long-term reliable supply together with the more 
intelligent use of energy. We are proud of a year that is marked by 

the introduction of new, more environmentally friendly 
technologies for energy generation. We are putting into operation 

gas powered steam turbines with reduced carbon dioxide emissions. 
We are increasing electricity  production. We act responsibly 

toward the environment and  society!
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Every day of 
the year starts 
with morning

Electricity generated at the Šoštanj Thermal Power 
Plant provides the little comforts and enables major 
developments. In planning current output we ensure 
the least burdening of the environment. But concern 
for the environment stems from the individual! Thus 

we the staff of the Šoštanj Thermal Power Plant 
incorporate a concern for efficient energy use in all 

our everyday considerations. And also in our thoughts 
looking ahead to the future!
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Letter from the managing director
Dear Stakeholders,

The year 2007 has brought us numerous findings and extensive experience. We were successful in 
production, which is consequently reflected in all other areas of our operations. 

That is something we can be proud of, since without the efforts of the entire staff we would not have 
succeeded in such an extremely short time to carry out the extensive overhaul of Unit 5. This was 
without a doubt a great success that will be written in history in golden letters.

An even greater success is the preliminary activity for signing the first contracts on the construction 
of Unit 6, which also marks the future of the Šalek Valley and Slovenia. 

Our present and future are also characterised by the optimisation of Unit 5 through the installation of 
gas turbines.

Why do we so enjoy glancing into the future? Simply because we know how to create a realistic picture 
and because we know we are capable of realising it. I am certain of the future success of the employees 
of the Šoštanj Thermal Power Plant, as for more than half a century we have been striving to remain 
one of the most important pillars of the Slovene energy system, supplying customers with safe, reliable 
and environmentally friendly heat and power at competitive prices.

We are aware that without a development strategy we will not be able to continue achieving such good 
results, much less be able to outdo the competition. The Unit 5 upgrade project has been successfully 
nearing completion this year and we have very specifically outlined how we will build our future. I am 
confident we will achieve it to the best of our knowledge and ability.

I am convinced that our advanced actions will lead to the implementation of our vision benefiting TPP 
Šoštanj, the Šalek Valley and all of Slovenia. 

Dr Uroš Rotnik
Managing Director
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Breaking through 
toward new visions 

is energy dependent

Sometimes only a little help is all that is necessary 
to become more efficient. But for real changes in 

approach greater shifts in thinking are required. We 
at the Šoštanj Thermal Power Plant are conscious that 

the future of both our enterprise as well as that of 
Slovenia depends on energy self-reliance and 

independence. Through investment in increasing 
production with the least burdening of nature we are 

ensuring that visions of growth can be realised.
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Report of the supervisory board
REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD OF TPP ŠOŠTANJ, d.o.o. 

In accordance with Article 13 of the Articles of Incorporation of the limited liability company Termoelektrarna 
Šoštanj d.o.o., the Supervisory Board has provided the sole member of the company, Holding Slovenske 
elektrarne d.o.o., with a written report on the findings in relation to the review ofthe 2007 Annual Report, 
as follows. 

1. Monitoring of the company’s performance in the financial year 2007 

In the 2007 financial year the Supervisory Board comprised the following members: 
• Ivan ATELŠEK – Chairman until 28 March 2007 
• Djordje ŽEBELJAN, MSc. – Chairman since 29 March 2007 
• Franc ROSEC – Deputy Chairman, Employee Representative 
• Franc SEVER 

During that time, the company was represented and managed by Managing Director Dr Uroš ROTNIK. 
In the year under consideration the Supervisory Board monitored and supervised the management and 
performance of the company by way of 11 regular and 2 extraordinary meetings and 3 correspondencesessions. 
In the course of its work, the Supervisory Board discussed the following key issues: 

1.1. Business plan for 2007 
The business plan for 2007 was discussed and adopted by the Supervisory Board at its 16th regular meeting 
on 27 December 2006. At its 25th regular meeting held on 7 November 2007, the SupervisoryBoard approved 
the revised business plan as a result of a long-term loan in the amount of EUR 30,000,000 raised for the 
down payment to the supplier of the maintechnological equipment for Unit 6. The revised plan brought 
about an increase of investments by EUR 30,000,000, or 81.8% more thanoriginally planned.

1.2. Investments 
In 2007 the attention of the Supervisory Board was again particularly focused on investments and theas-
sessment of their justifiability and compliance with the development plan, especially as regards theUnit 6 
project and the installation of gas turbines. The investment activity report was a regular item onthe agenda 
of every Supervisory Board meeting. Another regular item put on the agenda dealt with the issue of current 
business operations. 
As part of that discussion the Supervisory Board approved the management’s resolution to conclude with the 
bidder Alstom Power Centrals a retainer contract for the supply of the main technological equipment for Unit 
6 of TEŠ, with a capacity of 600 MW. The management was assigned to preparethe consolidated text of the 
IP “Construction of a 600 MW Unit 6 at TPP Šoštanj”.
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In September, the Supervisory Board approved the conclusion of a loan agreement with the European 
Investment Bank in the amount of EUR 350,000,000 as well as gave consent to a loan needed forpayment 
under the retainer contract worth EUR 25,000,000 + VAT, raised with the Sumitomo MitsuiBanking 
Corporation Europe Limited.
In the scope of the implementation of the “Upgrading of Units 4 and 5 through the installation of gas turbines”, 
the Supervisory Board approved the performance of construction work by Vegrad d.d.,Velenje, and the 
conclusion of Annex no. 1 to the Long-term purchase and sales Agreement on natural gas supply with 
Geoplin d.o.o., Ljubljana. 

1.3. Current Business Operations 
In the course of the business year, the Supervisory Board monitored and supervised the business operations 
of the company on a regular basis. It discussed the reports on business operations for the first quarter, six 
months and first three quarters, and acknowledged the information on performance forthe Jan.- Dec. 2006 
period. Article 19 of the Articles of Incorporation of the limited liability company Termoelektrarna Šoštanj 
d.o.o. provides that the Managing Directorshall seek and obtain approval of the Supervisory Board for 
any business deals and decisions made in relation to legal transactions andborrowings in excess of EUR 
333,834.08 for a single line of business in the current financial year,disinvestment and mortgaging of 
property, and legal transactions pertaining to capital investments ofthe company in other legal entities. In 
line with the above provision the Supervisory Board scrutinised the contract award procedures and selecti-
on of suppliers, focusing in particular on the verification ofthe relevant facts and data by accessing the data 
directly from the commercial documents. In the period under consideration, the Supervisory Board adopted 
decisions, effectively giving its consent forthe legal transactions to be carried out. 
In May, the Supervisory Board checked the progress of the Unit 5 overhaul and acknowledged theincreased 
scope of work. It required from the management to carry out all overhaul work that was reasonable and 
necessary for safe and reliable operation, and to provide funds for additional work. The final report on the 
Unit 5 overhaul was discussed by the Supervisory Board and the representatives of HSE d.o.o., Ljubljana. 
The latter gave a positive opinion on the progress of the Unit 5 overhaul at TPPŠoštanj. Furthermore, 
the Supervisory Board put the management in charge of preparing a review of activities aimed at preserving 
the safe and reliable operation of Unit 5 until 2025.

2. 2007 Annual report review 

The Supervisory Board has established that the annual report was submitted in due time, and that its 
composition and contents show a realistic picture of the company’s operations in 2007. The Supervisory Board 
has also acknowledged the fact that the net profit posted for the year in the amount of EUR 10,391,052.76 
was appropriated for covering the loss brought forward resulting fromestablished legal revenue reserves 
and other revenue reserves. 

The members of the Supervisory Board carried out a particularly detailed review of the report by themanagement 
on the relationships of the company with the controlling company and other subsidiary companies in the 
Group, and concluded that the transactions hadnot involved any acts or omissions potentially damaging for 
the company; consequently, the report was approved by the Supervisory Board. 

The members of the Supervisory Board also carried out a review of the annual report. No objections to the 
annual report were recorded; hence it was approved by the Supervisory Board at its 29th regular meeting 
held on 5 May 2008.

The Supervisory Board was acquainted in detail with the auditor’s report. The financial statements for 
2007 were audited by Deloitte Revizija d.o.o., Ljubljana. In the report, the auditor was of the opinion that 
the financial statements and notes to the financial statements provided a true and fair view of the financial 
situation of the company as at 31 December 2007. 
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The Supervisory Board concurred with the auditor’s report. 

Following the review, the Supervisory Board had no objections to the annual report. The Supervisory Board 
has approved the Annual report of Termoelektrarna Šoštanj d.o.o. for 2007 and has proposed tothe owner 
that, in line with the provisions of the Articles of Incorporation of the limited liabilitycompany, a discharge 
from liability be granted to the Managing Director and the Supervisory Board. 

            Chairman of the TEŠ Supervisory Board until 28 March 2007: 
     Ivan ATELŠEK Chairman of the TEŠ 

           Chairman of the TEŠ  Supervisory Board since 29 March 2007: 
     DJORDJE ŽEBELJAN, MSc. 

Šoštanj, 5 May 2008
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Small details 
also have 

a large effect
We need to talk about the future. And about our own 
everyday contributions to common efficiency measures 

as well! We at the Šoštanj Thermal Power Plant are 
proud of the good relations we have established with 

strategically important contractors and with other 
business partners. During the new investment cycle 

relations with the business community are of particular 
importance. The clarity of our plans means that 

collaboration with other involved parties will improve 
and get ever closer.
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Corporate governance statement 
The company is run in accordance with applicable legal standards, Articles of Incorporation adopted 
on 14 February 2006 by HSE d.o.o. as the sole owner of Termoelektrarna Šoštanj d.o.o., and in line 
with the principles of good business practice.
As provided by the Articles of Incorporation, the company is managed by the company member and 
the corporate bodies, i.e. Supervisory Board and Managing Director.

Company member:
In accordance with the Companies Act (ZGD-1), the company member has sole discretion in relation 
to the following matters:

amendments to the Articles of Incorporation;
adoption of the fundamentals of corporate policy and company development plan;
adoption of the annual report if the Supervisory Board does not approve it or if the Managing 
Director and the Supervisory Board leave the adoption of the annual report to the company 
member;
allocation of accumulated profit;
giving discharge to the Managing Director and Supervisory Board;
allocation and termination of business interests;
changes to the company’s nominal capital;
changes to the Articles of Association and dissolution of the company;
appointment and dismissal of Supervisory Board members;
appointment of company auditor;
appointment of the procurator and proxies; and
other matters as provided by regulations and Articles of Incorporation.

Pursuant to Article 526 of the Companies Act, decisions adopted by the company member are ente-
red in the register of decisions.

Supervisory Board:
The Supervisory Board has 3 members: 2 represent the interests of the owner and are appointed and 
dismissed by the owner, while 1 member represents the interests of employees and is appointed in 
accordance with the Workers Participation in Management Act. Members of the Supervisory Board 
are appointed for a term of four years and can be re-appointed when their term of office expires. As 
provided by the Articles of Incorporation, the Supervisory Board’s responsibility is to:

monitor the management of company business operations;
verify the contents of the annual report and proposed allocation of accumulated profit;
draft a written report on findings relating to the verification of the annual report for the com-
pany member;
approve the annual report or raise objections to it;
issue opinions as to the fundamentals of corporate policy and company development plans;
approve company business plans;
recommend the company member to adopt decisions within its field of competence and issue 
opinions to the recommendations regarding the adoption of the company member’s decisions 
proposed by the Managing Director;
appoint and dismiss the Managing Director;
approve the Managing Director’s business transactions;
conclude a contract of employment with the Managing Director;
adopts the rules of procedure relating to the work of the Supervisory Board.

The Supervisory Board may also request reports on other matters and can perform other duties as 
provided by regulations and decisions adopted by the company member. The Supervisory Board ope-
rates in accordance with the Supervisory Board Rules of Procedure.

•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

•
•
•

•
•
•
•

•
•
•
•
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Managing Director:
The company is managed and represented by the Managing Director who is appointed by the Su-
pervisory Board for a period of 4 years and selected following a call for applications. The Managing 
Director is eligible for reappointment. As provided by the Articles of Incorporation, the Managing 
Director shall seek and obtain approval of the Supervisory Board in relation to the following busi-
ness deals and decisions:

legal transactions and borrowings in excess of EUR 333,834.08 for the same business item in 
the current financial year;
disposal and mortgaging of property; and
equity investment by the company in other legal entities.

•

•
•
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We are fully aware 
of the path toward 

knowledge and 
collaboration

Information is key and the know how to manage it is 
indispensable. At the Šoštanj Thermal Power Plant we 
are fully aware that innovations have to be mastered. 
Therefore we invest in the education and training of 

the workforce. We provide the specialists of the future 
through a well considered scholarship scheme. We 

provide for the development of society through good 
information links. And good energy!
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Management’s report of relations with 
the controlling entity and other subsidiary 
companies in the group

Termoelektrarna Šoštanj d.o.o. is part of the Holding Slovenske elektrarne Group. As at 31/12/2007, 
Holding Slovenske elektrarne d.o.o., based in Ljubljana, Koprska 92, was its sole company member, 
i.e. the controlling company, and prepared the consolidated annual report 2007 for the group of the 
companies under its control.
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 Composition of the HSE Group in 2007:

As provided by Articles 545 and 546 of the Companies Act, the company’s management submitted a 
report on relations with the controlling companies and other subsidiary companies in the Group, esta-
blishing that:
In view of the circumstances known at the time a legal transaction was carried out, TEŠ d.o.o. estima-
tes that it was not disadvantaged in any such transaction with the controlling company and the parties 
related to the controlling company, and that in 2007 no legal transaction, act or omission that could be 
potentially damaging to the company took place as a result of influence exercised by Holding Sloven-
ske elektrarne d.o.o.

HOLDING SLOVENSKE
ELEKTRARNE D.O.O.

DIVISION 1

PRODUCTION

Eldom d.o.o.

DIVISION 2

INTERNATIONAL
NETWORK

DIVISION 3

INVESTMENTS

DIVISION 4

MULTI - UTILITY

36,0 %

ECONO d.o.o.

GOLTE d.o.o.

HSE Italia S.r.l.

Subsidiares of PV

HSE representative office, Serbia

HSE rbranch office, Czech Republic

HSE representative office, Romania
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05At the Šoštanj Thermal Power Plant we are sensitive to 
the present and the future. Every detail is important. 

Every number sounds its own individual meaning. We 
know that we are operating in harmony. Our great 

composition of effciency stands in accordance with the 
important aspects of energy supply growth in Slovenia.

When energy 
is at stake all 

viewpoints have 
to be listened to

24
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Highlights of the year  
JANUARY
A task force began working on the “Competence Model Implementation” project. We began to intro-
duce an information management system in conformity with the ISO 27001:2005 standard.

FEBRUARY
In February, the 2006 Annual Report was audited by the auditing firm KPMG SLOVENIJA.

MARCH
A previous member and Chairman of the Supervisory Board resigned, and a new member, Mr Djordje 
ŽEBELJAN, was appointed as the company member’s representative. Mr Žebeljan was subsequently 
appointed Chairman of the Supervisory Board.  

APRIL
After four years of operation, a large-scale overhaul of Unit 5 began at the end of the month. 

MAY
As part of the Government visit to the Savinja-Šalek Region, the Minister of Finance, Mr Andrej 
BAJUK, visited the company.
A supporting wall and steel structure were built for the purpose of installing a gas turbine.
The company’s Managing Director, Dr Uroš Rotnik, received a CIGRE-CIRED excellence award for his 
doctoral thesis.
The Supervisory Board approved the company’s annual report for 2006.

JUNE
The large-scale overhaul of Unit 5 was completed at the end of the month.

JULY
ALSTOM POWER CENTRALS was selected as the supplier of main technological equipment for Unit 6.

AUGUST
With a decision, the company member HSE d.o.o. gave discharge to the Managing Director and 
Supervisory Board of the company, and adopted a decision on the conversion of nominal capital and 
subscribed contribution from SIT to EUR.

SEPTEMBER
A EUR 350 million loan agreement was signed with the European Investment Bank for the construc-
tion of Unit 6.

OCTOBER
The company member HSE d.o.o. adopted a decision to bring the Articles of Incorporation into line 
with amendments to the Companies Act.

NOVEMBER
The Supervisory Board approved the revised business plan for 2007. In accordance with the company 
member’s decisions concerning the conversion of nominal capital and subscribed contribution to 
EUR, an amendment to the Articles of Incorporation was registered with the Court.

DECEMBER
The company member HSE d.o.o. increased the nominal capital by way of additional contribution of 
EUR 20,864,000.00 and redefined the company’s business activity. Pursuant to these decisions, an 
amendment to the Articles of Incorporation was registered with the Court on 17 December.
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Highlights from operations

The Šoštanj Thermal Power Plant (TPP Šoštanj) operated successfully in 2007, and the goals set were 
achieved or even exceeded. In the past year, TPP Šoštanj continued to pursue its development path 
and successfully carried out activities in relation to two important capital investments: installation 
of gas turbines 2x42 MW at Unit 5, and construction of Unit 6.

Compared to 2006, net sales revenue increased by 9.4% in 2007. Higher output and selling prices of 
electricity accounted for the greater part of the increase. 

Net profit or loss for the period, i.e. net profit in the amount of EUR 10,391,053, was the highest in 
the last couple of years. It was the result of higher electricity revenue (higher output, higher selling 
prices) and successful management of increases in the prices of input raw materials, materials and 
services. A portion of net profit, which had been allocated to other revenue reserves, was earmarked 
for own funds that are to be used for capital investments. 

Investments in the installation of gas turbines and preparations for the construction of Unit 6 acco-
unted for the largest share of increase in the company’s assets. By installing gas turbines, the com-
pany will increase the unit’s total output, decrease CO2 emissions, decrease the consumption of coal, 
replacing it with gas, and increase the production of electricity. The new 600 MW Unit 6 represent 
a new production capacity which will replace older plants. Using state-of-the-art technology, TEŠ 
will not only maintain or even increase the volume of electricity production while using the planned 
quantities of domestic coal, but will also decrease its emission factor (CO2/kWh) and increase effici-
ency (over 40%).

The number of employees was 508 as at 31/12/2007, which is 29 people less than in the previous 
year. The number decreased owing to the retirement of a large number of employees and several 
terminations of employment contracts due to business reasons.
 
In 2007 the company continued to increase its threshold power.

TERMOELEKTRARNA	ŠOŠTANJ	D.O.O.	

KEY	INFORMATION 2007 2006 2005

Net sales revenue in € 202,420,255    184,980,643    186,988,900    

                    * domestic market in € 202,381,793    184,946,893    186,940,523    

                    * foreign market in € 38,462    33,750    48,377    

Net profit or loss in € 10,391,052    1,650,347    345,468    

Revenue in € 215,071,253    187,068,580    188,548,485    

EBIT = operating profit or loss in € 13,726,735    4,538,592    4,019,596    

EBITDA = EBIT + AM in € 39,760,430    29,902,517    28,788,754    

Assets in € 362,330,719    301,219,215    304,620,527    

Equity in € 228,827,733    197,572,681    198,258,333    

Investments in € 66,119,322    20,920,260    6,057,779    

Number of employees at period end 508    537    561    

Electricity production in GWh 
(coal in TJ)

3,756    3,749    3,641    
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Business report
6.1 Company profile

Full company name TERMOELEKTRARNA ŠOŠTANJ, d.o.o.

Abbreviated name TEŠ d.o.o.

Legal form Limited liability company with one company member

Address Šoštanj, Cesta Lole Ribarja 18

Telephone 03 8993 100

Fax 03 8993 485

Companies registry entry no. 10051100 - District Court in Celje

Nominal capital € 102,227,759.00

Year of establishment 1956

Tax number 92189903

VAT ID number SI92189903

Registration number 5040388

Website www.te-sostanj.si

E-mail info@te-sostanj.si

Main business activity Electricity production at thermal power plants,                                    
        production using heat and hot water

Managing Director Dr Uroš Rotnik

President of the Supervisory Board Djordje Žebeljan, M.Sc., appointed on 29 March 2007 for the remainder 
of the term of office of the other two Supervisory Board members

Members of the Supervisory Board Franc Sever, appointed on 23 August 2005 for a 4-year term of office

Franc Rosec, appointed on 23 August 2005 for a 4-year term of office

Ownership structure (owner and interest) Holding Slovenske elektrarne, d.o.o.; 100%

6.2 Mission and strategic goals

TEŠ’s mission is to supply customers 
with adequate quantities of energy 
through the production of electrici-
ty and heat, thus contributing to a 
higher quality of work and life of its 
customers.

TEŠ’s strategy, which is derived from 
the implementation of the mission, is 
future-oriented. TEŠ aims to remain 
the largest thermal energy system 
in Slovenia. The main long-term 
objective is to increase production 
capacities and ensure a reliable, safe 
and environment friendly production 
of electricity and heat from various 
primary sources.

In its business plan for 2007, TEŠ set 
itself annual targets which have been 
successfully accomplished.

Production electricity and heat
The total electricity production in 
2007 amounted to 4,268.3 GWh, of 
which 512 GWh (12.0% of total ou-
tput) were used for own consumption 
and 3,756.3 GWh were supplied to the 
grid.

The volume of electricity produced by 
TEŠ in 2007 represents 53.5% of the 
total output of production companies in 
the HSE Group which in 2007 generated 
53.8% of all electricity in Slovenia.

In 2007 productivity was 7.15 GWh 
per employee, up 5.8% compared to 
2006 (6.76 GWh per employee). Plant 
availability stood at 98.7%.

In 2007 heat production totalled 399.3 
GWh, down 26 GWh from the previo-
us year.

Sales of electricity and heat
Thanks to market demand for addi-
tional quantities of electricity, the 
measurable electricity sales target was 
exceeded. Electricity sales were 8.9% 
higher than planned, resulting in an 
increase in revenue from the sales of 
electricity by 12.8%. Heat sales were 
lower than planned due to lower 
demand for this form of energy. The 
quantity sold was 6.3% lower than 
planned, while the corresponding 
sales revenue decreased by 7.7%. 

Ensuring appropriate structure, skills, 
efficiency and availability of human 
resources
According to measurable indicators, 
the target of ensuring appropriate 
structure, skills, efficiency and availa-
bility of human resources was achie-
ved. The trend of decreasing employee 
numbers continued in 2007, with the 
number of permanent employees redu-
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ced by 28. As at 31/12/2007, the com-
pany had 508 permanent workers. This 
decline is the result of planned and 
implemented organisational changes.

Purchasing of primary resources, 
spare parts, materials and services
The target was achieved by success-
fully negotiating the most favourable 
purchasing conditions with suppli-
ers. Purchasing criteria were set by 

assessing supplier competitiveness, 
the quality of products from different 
suppliers, carrying out a business 
analysis of preferred and potential 
suppliers, and negotiating the best 
possible terms and conditions. 

Ensuring liquidity and cost efficiency 
of operation
To achieve this goal, TEŠ took actions 
in the area of liquidity management 

to settle its liabilities as they fell due. 
The company operated in line with 
fundamental principles of long term 
and short term solvency. In 2007 
expenses were higher than planned. 
However, as sale revenue was also 
higher than planned, the company 
ended the year with a higher profit. 

6.3 Business climate in 2007

In 2007 the Slovene economy was 
mostly characterised by the intro-
duction of the euro, high economic 
growth and high inflation.

At 6.1%, the growth in gross domestic 
product in Slovenia was higher than 
in the previous year. 
Growth in foreign trade remained hi-
gher over eleven months of 2007, but 
due to the growth in imports exce-
eding the growth in exports, trade 
deficit increased.
In the past year, prices rose consi-
derably. In the domestic market, the 
prices of industrial products made by 
local producers rose 6.3% and thus 
substantially exceeded the increase 
in the foreign market (0.6%) of the 
prices of industrial products made by 
those producers. An important factor 
of growth in the domestic market was 
an increase in electricity prices for 
companies in February (19.5%), which 
was linked with entering into new 
futures contracts.
Owing to oil price dynamics in 2007, 
the price of Brent oil expressed in 
euros was more than 30% higher (or 
55% in dollar terms) in the last two 
months of the year than in the pre-
vious year. In global markets, crude 
oil prices exceeded the psychological 
threshold of USD 100.
In 2007 the inflation rate in Slovenia 
reached 5.6%, up 2.8 percentage po-
ints on the previous year. More than 
half of the increase can be attributed 
to higher food prices, 0.7 percenta-
ge points to higher prices of energy 

products, and 0.6 percentage points to 
the introduction of the euro.
Trends in international financial 
markets also influenced the domestic 
stock exchange, with the SBI20 index 
dropping by almost 10%. The latter 
notwithstanding, the index recorded 
the highest growth in the past ten 
years. In 2007 its value rose 78.1%.
According to the currency list as at 31 
December 2007, EUR/USD exchange 
rate was USD 1.4721 for one euro.

The year 2007 saw the highest decre-
ase in unemployment to date. In 2007 
people with lower and medium-level 
education benefited the most from the 
improvement in the ratio between the 
unemployed and vacancies, and their 
number decreased the most among the 
unemployed.

In terms of average income per capita, 
Slovenia lags considerably behind the 
EU average.
The greatest achievements of 2007 in-
cluded the introduction of the euro, a 
tax reform and lower public spending.

In the area of the electricity sector, the 
most important events in 2007 most 
certainly included the liberalisation of 
the market on 1 July, as part of which 
Slovenia joined the countries where 
all electricity consumers are free to 
choose their suppliers. 

The overall production of electricity 
decreased somewhat in 2007 (-0.6%). 
Accompanied with a modest increase 

in consumption, net electricity im-
ports increased by 80.1% as a result, 
which represents 3.3% of total electri-
city consumption. Although produc-
tion at thermal power plants and at 
the nuclear power plant increased by 
a few percent, production at hydropo-
wer plants decreased by 9.8%. 
The energy sector is currently fa-
cing a turning point in the area of a 
sustainable consumption of energy. 
The competitiveness of the Slovene 
economy depends on energy, whereas 
the quality of people’s lives depends 
on its price.

As far as broader international en-
vironment is concerned, we should 
mention efforts to reduce adverse 
consequences of human actions for 
the environment, in relation to which 
energy plays an important role. At 
the end of the year, the first period 
(2005-2007) elapsed in which electri-
city producers had to observe quotas 
regarding CO2 emissions they were 
allowed to release into the atmosphe-
re. If CO2 emissions were exceeded, 
additional emissions coupons had to 
be purchased, which are traded on a 
dedicated market.
European Union is well on track 
to honour its Kyoto protocol com-
mitments to reduce greenhouse gas 
emissions. Latest projections show 
that by 2010 EU-15 member states 
will decrease their emissions by 7.4 
percent relative to the baseline year 
of 1990.
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6.4 Sales and customers

In 2007 TPP Šoštanj generated reve-
nue from the sale of electricity (3,756 
GWh) through the company Holding 
Slovenske elektrarne d.o.o., which is 
an important electricity trader. TEŠ is 
the largest production facility in the 
HSE Group and provides a significant 
share of electricity sold by the HSE 
Group.  

In the sales revenue structure, Holding 
Slovenske elektrarne d.o.o. was the 
largest customer with a 96.7 percent 
share in 2007. 

Sales of electricity
TEŠ generated the majority of sales 
on the basis of the Long-term con-
tract for the purchase of coal, lease of 
capacity and purchase of electricity si-
gned by Holding Slovenske elektrarne, 
Premogovnik Velenje and TEŠ, which 
will remain in force until 2015. The 
contract lays down basic and additio-

nal quantities of coal in GJ, which the 
company shall purchase from Premo-
govnik Velenje, while Holding Sloven-
ske elektrarne as a buyer will purcha-
se all electricity produced at prices 
agreed upon in annual contracts. 

For the year 2007, an annual con-
tract for the purchase of coal, lease of 
capacity and purchase of electricity 
was signed by TPP Šoštanj, Holding 
Slovenske elektrarne and Premogov-
nik Velenje. The parties also signed 
Annexes 1 and 2 to the contract 
laying down contractual quantities 
and electricity prices for the period. 

In 2007 the amount of electricity sold 
totalled 3,756.3 GWh, which is 8.9% 
more than envisaged in the business 
plan.

Sales of heat
The sales of heat for the purpose of 

district heating of the Šalek Valley 
represent 2.4% of sales. 
The sales were based on an agree-
ment on the sale and purchase of heat 
entered into with the utility company 
Komunalno podjetje Velenje in 2006. 

In 2007 the sales of heat totalled 
399.3 GWh, down 6.3% compared to 
the business plan. 

Other sales
The company further increased sales 
revenue by selling industrial water to 
Komunalno podjetje Velenje, incine-
rating powdered animal by-products, 
selling fly ash, and REA gypsum and 
slag both at home and abroad.

6.5 Purchasing and suppliers

Suppliers play a prominent role in 
the implementation of the company’s 
development and strategic goals. Pre-
mogovnik Velenje is the company’s 
strategic supplier, with the purchase 
of coal for the generation of electrici-
ty and heat accounting for the largest 
share of the company’s purchases. 

The purchasing of coal for the pro-
duction of electricity is carried out on 
the basis of the Long-term contract 
for the purchase of coal, lease of 

capacity and purchase of electricity 
entered into by Holding Slovenske 
elektrarne, Premogovnik Velenje and 
TEŠ. 

Premogovnik Velenje also supplies the 
coal for the generation of heat. The 
purchasing is based on an estimated 
annual quantity of coal. 

The most important job of the pur-
chasing department is to find the best 
sources of products and services offe-

red by reputable Slovene and foreign 
suppliers. Apart from the suppliers 
of raw materials, our biggest suppli-
ers include the suppliers of capital 
investment equipment and contractors 
which carry out major maintenance 
and repair works. 

SALES	REVENUE	STRUCTURE

Revenue from heat 2%

Other sales revenue 1.3%

Revenue from electricity 96.7%

SALES REVENUE STRUCTURE 

MATERIALS PURCHASING STRUCTURE

Mainteinance materials 6%

Other materials 0.9%

Other materials 6.8% (other energy products)

Coal 86.3%

Other services 41.6%

Insurance premium 5.7%

Mainteinance services 52.7%

SERVICES PURCHASING STRUCTURE

Cash receipts from financing activities 31.80%

Cash receipts from financing activities 0.14%

Cash receipts from operating activities 68.07%

CASH RECEIPTS 1-12-2007

Cash disbursements for financing activities 18.67%

Cash disbursements for investing activities 24.88%

Cash disbursements for  operating activities 56.45%

CASH DISBURSEMENTS 1-12-2007

STRUCTURE OF LONG-TERM AND SHORT-TERM INDEBTEDNESS
AS AT 31.12.2007 BY INTEREST RATE TYPE

Fixed IR 37.8%

Variable IR 62,2%

STRUCTURE OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 
AT 31.12.2007 (balance sheet)

Short-term liabilities 27%

Long-term liabilities 73%

KVALIFIKACIJSKA STRUKTURA ZAPOSLENIH 
ZA NEDOLOÈEN ÈAS 31.12.2007 

I.-III. 14.5

VII 8.5%

IV. 34.0%

V. 34.6%

VI. 8.2%

VIII. 0.2%

To so pa pozabil prevest, al pa jaz ne najdem?
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6.6 Production

Power plant information

The biggest share of capital investment acquisitions re-
presents contracts for the supply and delivery of services 
relating to two gas turbines TA1 and TA2 at TEŠ’s Unit 5 
by the company Siemens from Ljubljana, and a contract 
concluded with the company Slovenske energeticke stro-
jarne a.s., Tlmače, Slovakia, for the supply and installation 
of two utilisers. 

In September 2007, a retainer contract was signed with the 
supplier ALSTOM Power Centrales through which the com-
pany ensured the supply of main technological equipment 
of Unit 6 in the second half of 2014.

POWER	PLANT LAUNCH	YEAR NO.	OF	TURBINES GENERATOR	
POWER	(MW)

THRESHOLD	
POWER	(MW)

Q	ANNUAL	
PRODUCTION	-
	5	years	(GWh)

- Unit 1 1956 1 27,000 25,000

582- Unit 2 1956 1 27,000 25,000

- Unit 3 1960 1 62,000 55,000

- Unit 4 1972 1 275,000 248,000 1,352

- Unit 5 1977 1 375,000 305,000 1,641

Total 1- 5 5 766,000 658,000 3,575

MATERIALS	PURCHASING	STRUCTURE

Revenue from heat 2%

Other sales revenue 1.3%

Revenue from electricity 96.7%

SALES REVENUE STRUCTURE 

MATERIALS PURCHASING STRUCTURE

Mainteinance materials 6%

Other materials 0.9%

Other materials 6.8% (other energy products)

Coal 86.3%

Other services 41.6%

Insurance premium 5.7%

Mainteinance services 52.7%

SERVICES PURCHASING STRUCTURE

Cash receipts from financing activities 31.80%

Cash receipts from financing activities 0.14%

Cash receipts from operating activities 68.07%

CASH RECEIPTS 1-12-2007

Cash disbursements for financing activities 18.67%

Cash disbursements for investing activities 24.88%

Cash disbursements for  operating activities 56.45%

CASH DISBURSEMENTS 1-12-2007

STRUCTURE OF LONG-TERM AND SHORT-TERM INDEBTEDNESS
AS AT 31.12.2007 BY INTEREST RATE TYPE

Fixed IR 37.8%

Variable IR 62,2%

STRUCTURE OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 
AT 31.12.2007 (balance sheet)

Short-term liabilities 27%

Long-term liabilities 73%

KVALIFIKACIJSKA STRUKTURA ZAPOSLENIH 
ZA NEDOLOÈEN ÈAS 31.12.2007 

I.-III. 14.5

VII 8.5%

IV. 34.0%

V. 34.6%

VI. 8.2%

VIII. 0.2%

To so pa pozabil prevest, al pa jaz ne najdem?
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Production of electricity 
The total volume of electricity produced at TEŠ in 2007 
was 3,756.3 GWh, which is 306.3 GWh or 8.9% more than 

forecast in the revised business plan for 2007, and 0.2% 
more than in 2006. 
 

Consumption of energy products
In 2007 4,072.6 thousand tons of coal were consumed, of 
which 3,951.7 thousand for the production of electricity 
and 120.9 thousand for the production of heat. The avera-
ge calorific value of coal supplied totalled 11,228 kJ/kg. 

Emission coupons
In 2007 TEŠ released 4,908,817 tons of CO2 during the 
production of electricity. Pursuant to the Environment 
Protection Act, the company was thus obliged to pay the 
environment pollution tax (1 coupon per ton of CO2). To 
pay this tax, the company still had 4,110,752 free coupons 

at its disposal. The difference of 798,065 emissions cou-
pons will be offset with the purchase of emission coupons 
from HSE.

In February 2008, a purchase and sale contract was con-
cluded for the sale, purchase, transfer and acquisition of 
CO2 emissions coupons valid in the first European trading 
scheme, i.e. since 2005 to 2007 inclusive. In accordan-
ce with the contract, HSE will surrender and transfer the 
contractually agreed quantities of CO2 emissions coupons 
to TEŠ’s account open with the Slovene emission coupon 
registry not later than 31 March 2008.
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The reason for the higher than planned output was a very 
high level of production in the third quarter due to extre-
mely unfavourable hydrological conditions and comparati-
vely high electricity prices in the market during that time. 

Production of heat 
In 2007 TEŠ produced 399.3 GWh of heat intended for 
heating, which is 6.3% less than planned and 6.1% less 
than in 2006. The company nevertheless fully met demand 
for heat, and the supply to consumers was undisturbed. 
Lower-than-planned production is the result of higher 
winter temperatures.
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6.7 Financial operations

The basic task of financial manage-
ment is to ensure long-term and short-
term solvency, which in turn enables 
undisturbed business operations of 
other business functions.
TEŠ conducts a financial policy that 
ensures optimum conduct of business 
in the areas of liabilities and receiva-
bles management, financing and inve-
sting, financial risk management and 
cooperation with financial institutions. 

In 2007 financial management was 
focused primarily on the provision 
of funds for current operations and 
investments in fixed assets. 

The company’s short-term solvency 
was ensured through efficient financi-
al management of cash and systema-
tic planning and monitoring of cash 
flows. HSE d.o.o. paid in the planned 
increase in capital in the amount of 
EUR 20,864,000 in November 2007 
(the payment was planned for the first 
quarter of 2007). 
Because a difference arose between the 
planned receipts and disbursements, 

the company had to take out short-
term loans with commercial banks. 

The analysis of cash flows for 2007 
reveals that the greater part of receipts 
(68.07%) was generated through opera-
ting activities (of which 95.95% refers 
to receipts from electricity sales); rece-
ipts from financing activities account 
for 31.80% (they refer to short-term 
and long-term loans and the paying-
up of capital); receipts from investing 
activities account for 0.14%. 
56.45% of disbursements were made 
for preserving operating capacity (of 
which 69.13% for the purchase of coal 
used in the production of electricity, 
and 16.33% for maintenance, mate-
rials and services) while 18.67% were 
made for financing (18.67%).

As for investing activities, the enti-
rety of disbursements was made for 
the acquisition of property, plant and 
equipment (81.93%), for the acquisition 
of intangible assets (0.09%), and for 
overhauls (17.98%). Disbursements for 
investing activities exceeded the dis-

bursements envisaged in the company’s 
business plant for 2007 by 4%.
Receipts from financing activities inclu-
de capital paid up in November 2007 by 
the parent company in the amount of 
EUR 20,864,000, receipts from short-
term loans, and utilisation of an over-
draft facility with a commercial bank. 
The company took out short-term loans 
with commercial banks to bridge a 
liquidity outflow related to investments 
in fixed assets, which has arisen due to 
a delayed paying-up of capital, and to 
make a timely payment of retainer to 
the supplier of the Unit 6 equipment.
Receipts from the increase in long-
term financial liabilities refer to the 
acquisition of long-term assets used 
for investments in fixed assets and for 
refinancing of short-term loans.

The disbursements for financing were 
made to repay principals and interest 
on short-term and long-term loans 
taken out for the construction of pro-
duction units and purification plants 
at TEŠ’s production units, and for 
refinancing and restructuring.
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TEŠ operates in accordance with bu-
siness and financial standards, and in 
accordance with regulations of the Fi-
nancial Operations of Companies Act. 
A vertical and horizontal analysis of 
the structure of assets and liabilities 
for 2007 shows that the company im-
proved its structure of sources thanks 
to the increase in capital. 98.06% of 
long-term assets were financed from 
long-term sources while the difference 
was financed from short-term sources 

(1.94%). The company carries out a 
capital intensive business activity. 
In the financial year 2007 liabilities 
arising from long-term financing 
activities increased due to additional 
borrowing for investments in fixed 
assets. Financial liabilities are the 
result of the financing of the con-
struction of production units and 
purification plants of Units 4 and 5, 
reconstructions and refinancing in the 
past year, and additional borrowing in 

2007 for the financing of new invest-
ments in fixed assets. The structure 
of loans according to the balance as 
at 31/12/2007 was as follows: 33.8% 
were taken out with foreign banks 
and 66.2% with domestic banks. 
To finance the construction of TEŠ’s 
Unit 6, a EUR 350 million loan 
agreement was concluded with the 
European Investment Bank in Sep-
tember 2007.
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6.7.1 Ratios

Equity financing rate

The company’s equity accounts for 62.68% of total liabilities. The company’s operations are financed 
both from own and external sources. Compared to 2006, the ratio decreased on account of higher 
liabilities (increase in long-term financial liabilities to banks and in short-term operating liabilities).

EQUITY	FINANCING	RATE 2007 2006

1. Liabilities 365,064,846 301,219,215

2. Equity 228,827,734 197,572,681

Equity financing rate = 2 / 1 62.68 65.59
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Long-term financing rate

 The company finances more than 81% of its assets from long-term sources. 

Operating fixed assets rate

Property, plant and equipment and intangible fixed assets account for 82.21% of the company’s 
assets. The decrease in the ratio relative to 2006 is a result of an increase in current assets.

Long-term assets rate

The long-term assets rate represents the share of long-term assets in total assets. The ratio for 2007 
is lower than the one for 2006; it decreased due to an increase in current assets.

Equity to operating fixed assets ratio

The ratio represents the relation between equity and operating fixed assets. In 2007 the ratio stood at 
0.76, meaning that the company used equity to finance the majority of the most illiquid assets. The 
ratio remained unchanged compared to 2006.

LONG-TERM	FINANCING	RATE 2007 2006

1. Equity 228,827,734 197,572,681

2. Long-term liabilities 55,761,670 33,946,822

3. Provisions and Long-term accured costs and 
deffered revenue

10,498,468 12,488,102

4. Total ( 1 + 2 + 3 ) 295,087,872 244,007,605

5. Liabilities 365,064,846 301,219,215

Long-term financing rate = 4 / 5 80.83 81.01

LONG-TERM	ASSETS	RATE 2007 2006

1. Property, plant and equipment 295,543,704 259,313,694

2. Intangible assets and Long-term accrued revenue 
and deferred costs

4,561,635 449,260

3. Investment property 0 0

4. Long-term investments 213,636 213,636

5. Long-term operating receivables 175,150 220,187

6. Total (1 + 2 + 3 + 4 + 5) 300,494,125 260,196,777

7. Assets 365,064,846 301,219,215

Long-term assets rate = 6 / 7 82.31 86.38

EQUITY	TO	OPERATING	FIXED	ASSETS	RATIO 2007 2006

1. Equity 228,827,734 197,572,681

2. Property, plant and equipment 295,543,704 259,313,694

3. Intangible assets and Long-term accrued revenue and 
deferred costs

4,561,635 449,260

4. Total fixed assets at carrying amount (2 + 3) 300,105,339 259,762.954

Equity to operating fixed assets ratio = 1 / 4 0.76 0.76

OPERATING	FIXED	ASSETS	RATE 2007 2006

1. Property, plant and equipment 295,543,704 259,313,694

2. Intangible assets and Long-term accrued revenue 
and deferred costs

4,561,635 449,260

3. Total fixed assets at carrying amount (1 + 2) 300,105,339 259,762,954

4. Assets 365,064,846 301,219,215

Operating fixed assets rate = 3 / 4 82.21 86.24
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Acid test ratio

The acid test ratio equals 0, meaning that the company had minimum liquid assets at its disposal as 
at 31/12/2007. 

Quick ratio

The quick ratio shows whether the company finances current assets only through short-term liabi-
lities or also through long-term liabilities. The ratio for 2007 stood at 0.56, up from 2006. The ratio 
increased due to an increase in short-term operating receivables.

Current ratio

The current ratio shows the financing of current assets from short-term liabilities. Due to an increase 
in current assets, the ratio for 2007 increased compared to 2006.

Operating efficiency ratio

In 2007 the company’s operating revenue exceeded its operating expenses by 7%. The ratio increa-
sed relative to 2006.

OPERATING	EFFICIENCY	RATIO 2007 2006

1. Operating revenue 214,940,526 186,581,531

2. Costs of goods, materials and services 144,781,289 133,948,407

3. Labour costs 16,284,384 16,306,961

4. Write-downs in value 29,271,900 27,217,081

5. Other operating expenses 10,876,218 4,570,490

6. Total operating expenses (2 + 3 + 4 + 5) 201,213,791 182,042,939

Operating efficiency ratio = 1 / 6 1.07 1.02

ACID	TEST	RATIO 2007 2006

1. Cash 901 3,700

2. Short-term investments 0 0

3. Total liquid assets (1 + 2) 901 3.700

4. Short-term liabilities 66,408,745 55,547,428

Acid test ratio = 3 / 4 0.00 0.00

QUICK	RATIO 2007 2006

1. Cash 901 3,700

2. Short-term investments 0 0

3. Short-term operating receivables 36,978,940 29,854,830

4. Total (1 + 2 + 3) 36,979,841 29,858,530

5. Short-term liabilities 66,408,745 55,547,428

Quick ratio = 4 / 5 0.56 0.54

CURRENT	RATIO 2007 2006

1. Current assets 47,587,976 40,249,890

2. Short-term accrued revenue and deferred costs 16,538,002 75,432

3. Total (1 + 2) 64,125,978 40,325,322

4. Short-term liabilities 66,408,745 55,547,428

Current ratio = 3 / 4 0.97 0.73
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Net return on equity ratio

The net return on equity ratio shows that in 2007 the company closed the year with a profit, genera-
ting 5 units of profit per 100 units of equity. The ratio increased relative to 2006 due to an increase 
in profit.

Debt-to-equity ratio

The ratio shows the relation between debts and the company’s equity. The higher the value, the 
higher the indebtedness. In 2007 the ratio stood at 0.33. It increased compared to 2006 due to an 
increase in long-term debts.

6.8 Risk management

NET	RETURN	ON	EQUITY 2007 2006

1. Net profit for the period 10,391,053 1,650,347

2. Average equity 213,200,207 197,915,507

Net return on equity = 1 / 2 0.05 0.01

DEBT-TO-EQUITY	RATIO 2007 2006

1. Short-term debts 20,672,400 17,083,950

2. Long-term debts 55,745,190 33,915,029

3. Total (1 + 2) 76,417,590 50,998,979

4. Equity 228,827,733 197,572,681

Debt-to-equity ratio = 3/4 0.33 0.35

Timely identification, regular monitoring and management 
of risks are important conditions for effective and efficient 
achievement of business objectives.  However, it is up to 
the people in charge to ensure an adequate ratio between 
anticipated profitability and risk, taking into account the 
current business environment and circumstances.
TEŠ encounters various kinds of risks in its business ope-
rations, but the most prevailing are:

Business risks relate to the capacity of creating revenue 
and containing costs as well as maintaining the value of 
business resources in the company.

Quantitative risk includes risk, which originates 
from uncertainty of energy product supply and 
production as well as electricity supply. Produc-
tion uncertainty is above all linked with the basic 
question whether or not energy can be produced. 
The occurrences of production failure are possible 
due to unplanned shutdowns, technological and 
ecological limitations of production and also due 
to insufficient energy product supply. Quantita-
tive risk is managed through timely and profes-
sional performance of planned maintenance 
work on the existing facilities and equipment, 
and through new investments. To control the 
coal supply risk, we concluded an annual con-
tract for the purchase of coal, lease of capacity 
and purchase of electricity with Premogovnik 
Velenje, which is thus obliged to sell and deliver 
coal according to the envisaged monthly con-
sumption of coal for electricity production.

•

Market risk includes risk to which TEŠ is 
exposed due to uncertainty arising from the 
environment pollution charge and possibil-
ity of losing the selling market. In connection 
with the environment pollution charge, the 
company intends to reduce market risk prima-
rily by introducing new technologies which 
were adopted as part of the development plan 
of HSE group for 2004-2013 and which outline 
measures for improving environment protec-
tion and people’s health. The allocated emission 
coupons (Environment Protection Act) were 
insufficient for annual production until the end 
2007. The purchase of lacking emission coupons 
has been assured by the parent company. The 
company protected itself against the market risk 
by entering into the Long-term contract for the 
purchase of coal, lease of capacity and purchase 
of electricity with Holding Slovenske elektrarne 
and Premogovnik Velenje in 2004. The contract 
lays down basic and additional quantities of coal 
in GJ, which the company shall purchase from 
Premogovnik Velenje, while Holding Slovenske 
elektrarne as a buyer will purchase all electricity 
produced by TEŠ at prices agreed upon in an-
nual contracts.

Decrease in the value of business resources risk 
is related to the risk of destruction, obsoleteness 
or other decreases in business resources. All of 
TEŠ’s major resources are adequately insured 
with an insurance company for all kinds of risks.

•

•
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Financial risks are related to the company’s capacity of 
creating financial revenue, controlling financial expen-
ses, maintaining the value of financial assets, controlling 
financial liabilities and ensuring long-term solvency.

Credit risk is defined by the company as a pos-
sibility that receivables from buyers and other 
business partners, which arise from deferred 
payments, will be collected with a delay or not 
at all. The company controls the risk through 
regular monitoring of outstanding receivables, 
controlling of weak payers, penalty interest, and 
credit insurance. If problems arise in the collec-
tion of receivables, the company actively pursues 
chain compensations. Credit risk of the com-
pany is moderate because the annual contract 
has been concluded with the biggest buyer, into 
which elements of credit insurance were includ-
ed. In the year 2007 there was no need to make 
applications for enforcement against non-payers.

Liquidity risk is defined as a possibility that at a 
given moment there may not be enough liquid 
funds to meet current obligations. The risk is low 
because the company generates most of its sales 
revenue in the domestic market where payment 
is predictable and stable. Likewise, the trade li-
abilities and financial obligations are known in 
advance. The company controls the liquidity risk 
by financial management, mainly by planning 
future cash flows, by constant contact with the 
biggest buyer, and good business relationship 
with big Slovenian banks.

Interest rate risk arises from a possibility of un-
favourable developments of interest rates, and is 
moderate. Due to the fact that the company has 
a variable interest rate on some of the loans it 
took out, these loans are susceptible to develop-

•

•

•

ments of interest rates. In order to solve such 
problems TEŠ pursues a hedging policy by using 
derivative financial instruments and by replac-
ing the existing loans by taking out loans on 
more favourable terms.

Inflation risk of the company arises from the 
risk of increasing purchase prices of materials 
and services that cannot be quickly passed on to 
end prices of electricity and heat. The company 
monitors the inflation risk by monitoring mac-
roeconomic policy and by concluding purchase 
contracts at constant prices.

Operational risks are mainly related to the design, im-
plementation and supervision of business processes and 
activities in the company. Risk exposure is low because we 
implemented the quality management system ISO 9001, the 
environmental management system ISO 14001 as well as 
the occupational health and safety system OHSAS 18001. 
These systems define the implementation of business acti-
vities and processes as well as responsibilities and autho-
risations. The adequacy of implementation is examined by 
internal and external audits.
In order to prevent software and application failures, the 
company pays big attention to the development and opera-
tions of its information infrastructure.

Regulatory risk is the risk related to changes and ambi-
guity of legislation and regulations, which are beyond the 
company’s control. Due to constant changes in the area of 
legislation we ensure the proper application of regulati-
ons through constant functional and professional training 
performed by authorised and competent institutions. The 
company is subject to external audit of annual reports.

•

The main factors which influenced business operations of 
TEŠ in 2007 are:

Long-term contract for the purchase of coal, 
lease of capacity and purchase of electricity 
signed by TEŠ d.o.o., HSE d.o.o. and Premogov-
nik Velenje d.d. on September 2004. Having 
signed the contract, the parties agreed on their 
mutual relations between 2005 and 2015. The 
contract lays down basic and additional quanti-
ties of coal in GJ, which the company shall pur-
chase from Premogovnik Velenje, while Holding 
Slovenske elektrarne as a buyer will purchase 
all electricity produced at prices agreed upon in 
annual contracts.

•

The annual contract for the purchase of coal, 
lease of capacity and purchase of electricity 
concluded by TPP Šoštanj, Holding Slovenske 
elektrarne and Premogovnik Velenje in Decem-
ber 2006.

Business plan of TPP Šoštanj for 2007 adopted 
by the Supervisory Board on 27 December 2006, 
and revised business plan of TPP Šoštanj for 
2007 adopted by the Supervisory Board on 7 
November 2007. 

•

•

6.9 Business performance analysis
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2007 2006 2005 2004

Operating efficiency ratio
= Operating revenue/Operating expenses

1,07 1,02 1,02 1,05

Revenue per employee in EUR 409,660 337,565 331,592 170,134

Return on revenue
= Profit / Revenue

0.05 0.009 0.002 0.003

6.9.1 Operating performance

TEŠ ended the year 2007with a profit of EUR 10,391,053. 
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6.9.2 Revenue and expenses

Revenue
Operating revenue generated in 2007 was 14% higher than 
in 2006. The increase in revenue is the result of higher 
revenue from the sale of electricity (increased quantities 
and prices), from capitalised own products and services 
(these refer to materials used and work performed in con-
nection with overhauls of property, plant and equipment 
– overhaul of Unit 5), and higher other operating revenue 
– emission coupons.
The structure of operating revenue was as follows:

revenue from electricity sales   91.5% 
revenue from heat sales  1.9%
other sales revenue   1.2%
other operating revenue  2.9%
capitalised revenue  2.5%

In addition to operating revenue, TEŠ also generated reve-
nue from financing activities and other revenue.

•
•
•
•
•

Expenses
Expenses incurred in 2007 were 10% higher than in 2006. 
The increase in expenses is the result of:

higher costs of fuel resulting from higher output;
costs of materials used during the overhaul of 
Unit 5 were recorded as revenue and costs in ac-
cordance with SAS 25, which means they do not 
affect operating costs; 
revaluation operating expenses for property, 
plant and equipment – reversal of the estimated 
residual carrying amount of the replaced parts 
of Unit 5 production equipment, and write-off of 
investments in investment and study documents 
prior to 2007; 
higher costs of emission coupons;
higher interest.  

 

•
•

•

•
•

6.9.3 Assets and liabilities

On 31 December 2007, the company’s assets stood at EUR 
365,064,846, up 21% from to the year 2006. Considering 
the inflation rate, which was 5.6% (December 2007/De-
cember 2006), they increased by 14.8% in real terms. 
The increase in total assets is the result of the increase in 
property, plant and equipment, long-term property rights 
(emission coupons), and current assets.

In the structure of assets, the share of long-term assets 
decreased despite a 15% nominal increase relative to 2006.

In the structure of current assets, the share of which incre-
ased by 17.6% overall (in 2006: 13.4), the following items 
increased: short-term operating receivables from group 
companies, short-term operating receivables from others, 
and short-term accrued revenue and deferred costs. 
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6.9.4 Operating performance by business segments 

In 2007 all business segments operated at a profit. Revenue and expenses broken down by business segment also include 
own services and materials. 

Business	segment Revenue	in	EUR Expenses	and	defer-
red	taxes	in	EUR

Net	profit	or	loss Return	on	revenue=	Profit/
Revenue

Electricity production 210,175,730 200,118,898 10,056,832 0,048

Steam and hot water supply 4,217,785 4,160,847 56,938 0,013

Canteen 995,423 992,191 3,232 0,003

Social standard 400,033 125,982 274,051 0,685
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 The share of equity in liabilities at the end of the year 
2007 was 62.7% (in 2006: 65.1%). In comparison with the 
balance at the end of 2006, equity increased nominally 
by 16%; in real terms, by taking inflation into account, it 
increased by 9.7%. 

In 2007 the owner increased the capital of the company, 
which had already been envisaged in the revised busi-
ness plan for 2006. The capital was increased by EUR 
20,864,000. The profit for the current also affected the 
increase in equity.
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Had equity been adjusted for the increase in consumer pri-
ces (5.6%), the company would have generated an opera-
ting loss of EUR 1,841,402.

Compared to 2006, long-term liabilities increased by 64% 

(as a result of new long-term loans). Short-term liabilities 
also increased – due to an increase in short-term financial 
liabilities to banks (short-term portion of long-term loans) 
and short-term operating liabilities to group companies 
and to others.
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6.10 Development of the company 

70,000,0

60,000,0

50,000,0

40,000,0

30,000,0

20,000,0

10,000,0

0
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TEŠ is in the middle of a new invest-
ment cycle (construction of two gas 
units, construction of Unit 6) which is 
driven by the need for technological 
renovation. Technological renovati-
on will result in the closure of units 
which have come to the end of their 
service life, and will make possible for 
units (Unit 5) which will continue to 
operate after the year 2020 to comply 
with the best available technologies. 

Increasingly higher net electricity effi-
ciency is the aim of the technological 

renovation at new units, and it also 
represents guidance for implementing 
measures at existing units. 

As in previous year, we focused on the 
above goals at two levels. The first le-
vel represents the preparation of study 
documents, expert papers dealing with 
the operation of technological plants, 
and preparation of assessments. In the 
plans documents, this is referred to 
as “investments in the upgrading of 
technological procedures”.

The second level consists of “study 
documents” which deal with TEŠ’s 
development over a longer period. 
Before each determined step towards 
development, it is necessary to orga-
nise our visions which are supported 
by research into electricity market 
development, energy resources, broa-
der environment policy and practice, 
and by the development of electricity 
production technologies in the world.  

6.11  Investments

At TEŠ, some plants are nearing the end 
of their service life. Some have been 
operating since 1956 when Units 1 and 
2 were constructed, while the newest 
have been in operation since 1977 
when Unit 5 was constructed. As a 
result of increased utilisation in the past 
years, the life of Units 1 and 2 expired 
in 2007. Unit 3 will operate until 2011 
and Unit 4 until 2016, while Unit 5 is 
expected to operate until 2025.

Taking into account the condition of 
individual plants and the strategic aims 
of the company, it has been decided to 
upgrade the plants to such extent that 
they will operate safely and reliably 
until the end of their expected service 
life. The project of upgrading is being 
carried out on the basis of the analysis 
of plant operations, operating events, 
estimation of the remaining service 
life, and safe operation.  

With investments in operational units 
we ensure the required level of electri-
city production and eventual additi-
onal utilisation, and achieve safety 
and operational availability that is 
equivalent to the previous years.

In 2004 we started with preliminary work on the projec-
ts for the gas combined system of Unit 5. Works will be 
completed with the synchronisation of the first turbine in 
the middle of the year 2008 and the second turbine in the 
second half of 2008.

In 2005 we started with preliminary work on the projects 
concerning the new steam-powered unit 6. Works will be 
completed with the synchronisation of the turbine in 2014.
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In 2007 EUR 66,341,589 were used for capital investments, of which 58% for new facilities, 21% for the overhaul of Unit 
5, 16% for investments in the reliability of production, and 5% for other investments. 

Investments	in	2007

No. INVESTMENT BP	2007	
revision

Implementation	in	2007 in EUR

Depreciation Other	
own	

funds

Loans Total	 IND	BP	
2007	/	
Rev.	BP	

2007

foreign domestic

1 NEW	BUILDINGS 46,190,000 0 0 0 38,670,881 38,670,881 84

1.1. Unit 5 PKS 9,514,000 0 0 11,544,014 11,544,014 121

1.2. UNIT 6 36,676,000 0 0 27,126,867 27,126,867 74

2 INVESTMENTS	IN	
PRODUCTION	
RELIABILITY

8,847,000 6,476,969 0 0 3,829,119 10,306,088 116

2.1. Overhaul of Unit 5 
management system 

2,307,000 2,624,640 0 2,624,640 114

2.2. Replacement of mill 
rotors

460,000 355,495 0 355,495 77

2.3. Regulating turbine 
consumption A4-TP2

140,000 139,812 0 139,812 100

2.4. Replacement of Unit 5 
ignition device

480,000 671,631 0 671,631 140

2.5. Reconstruction of Unit 
5 generator

915.000 0 0 0 0

2.6. Overhaul and optimisation 
of Unit 5 boiler

2,920,000 1,705,147 3,829,119 5,534,266 190

2.7. Overhaul of the 
hydrogen plant

625,000 428,710 0 428,710 69

2.8. Overhaul of 
industrial water 
distribution system

500,000 380,045 0 380,045 76

2.9. Noise elimination 
(fans, steam dampers)

500,000 171,489 0 171,489 34

3 INVESTMENT	STUDY	
DOCUMENTS

209,000 51,760 0 51,760 25

4 MINOR	INVESTMENTS 605,000 693,614 0 693,614 115

5 BUSINESS	INFORMATION	
SYSTEM

563,000 2,421,804 0 0 0 2,421,804 430

5.1. INFO - software 188,000 67,927 67,927 36

5.2. INFO - hardware 375,000 2,353,877 2,353,877 628

6 Investment	from	previo-
us	years	not	included	in	
BP	2007	-	
prod.	reliability	inv.

194,200 194,200

 - Overhaul of RDP 4 92,026 92,026

 - Reorganisation of 
unit management - 
control board

14,386 14,386

 - Replacement of ash 
ducts and dredger 
pumps

82,593 82,593

 - Wastewater tank 5,195 5,195

TOTAL	COMPANY-	
investments	

56,414,000 9,838,346 0 0 42,500,000 52,338,345 93

7 Unit	5	large-scale	
overhauls

10,245,000 14,003,244 14,003,244 137

TOTAL	COMPANY	
-	investments	and	
large-scale	overhauls	

66,659,000 23,841,589 0 0 42,500,000 66,341,589 100
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Unit 6
On the basis of requests for higher electricity production, 
which result from increasing electricity consumption by 
end-users, a new production capacity – Unit 6 – with the 
expected power of 600 MW will be added to the existing 
units at TEŠ. At the same time older units, which are ne-
aring the end of their service life and are technologically 
out-of-date, will be replaced. 
Because the new Unit 6 will be coal-fired, the burdening 
of the environment with greenhouse CO2 gas emissions 
remain, but compared to the existing technology they are 
specifically lower (lower quantity of CO2/kWh) thanks to 
significantly improved efficiency of new technologies. 

Timeline of important events:
At the 12th General Meeting of the company on 
11 June 2004, TPP Šoštanj’s development plan 
was adopted as part of which the construction of 
a new energy facility, i.e. Unit 6, was confirmed.
In April 2006, the investor TPP Šoštanj pre-
pared an investment programme “Construction 
of a 600 MW Unit 6 at TEŠ”. The investment 
programme was based on the pre-investment 
concept and the conceptual design. In May 2007 
the investor revised the investment programme 
(Rev. 0) and harmonised equipment prices and 
construction date, taking into account the situa-
tion in the market for such equipment. 
In 2006 the investor published a periodic in-
formation notice for the selection of competent 
suppliers for the delivery of main technological 
equipment for the 600 MW Unit 6. Based on appli-
cations received, the investor recognised the com-
panies Alstom Power Centrales and Siemens AG, 
acting in consortium with Hitachi Power Europe 
and Siemens Ljubljana, as competent candidates.
In April 2007 the investor sent both candidates 
tender documentation for the delivery and in-
stallation of the main technological equipment 
for Unit 6, requesting that proposals for the 1st 
tender phase be returned by 10 August 2007. 
Both suppliers responded to the investor’s re-
quest for the confirmation of readiness to submit 
a proposal by giving a negative answer and rec-
ommending that due to insufficient availability 
of capacities and increased market demand for 
this type of equipment an exclusive agreement 
should be entered into in order to reserve their 
capacities. The investor acknowledged the situ-
ation and adjusted the tender procedure, calling 
on the candidates to submit their proposals in 
the form of a draft retainer contract until 13 
July 2007. The investor evaluated the proposals 
received and selected the one from Alstom as 
the most appropriate. This proposal was used as 
a basis for revising the investment programme. 
On 19 September 2007, a retainer contract was 
signed with Alstom, by way of which TEŠ en-
sured the construction of the technological unit 
in the second half of 2014. 
In September in Ljubljana, TPP Šoštanj and the 
European Investment Bank signed a EUR 350 
million loan agreement for the construction of the 
600 MW Unit 6. The remaining funds will have 

•

•

•

•

•

to be provided from own sources and loans taken 
out with commercial banks. At the end of 2008, 
TPP Šoštanj will begin the process to obtain a 
bank guarantee for the purpose of securing the 
loan taken out the EIB, which is necessary for the 
drawing of the first tranche of the loan expected 
to take place in the last four months of 2009.
In September 2007 a revised investment pro-
gramme for Unit 6 was prepared. The investor 
decided to revise the investment programme due 
to changes made to the time schedule of works, 
increased budget value of the facility, and the 
changed structure and conditions of financing.

Work on the project “Upgrading of Units 4 and 5 through 
the installation of gas turbines” is progressing as planned. 
In February, a building permit was obtained, and a call 
for tenders was issued for the performance of construction 
work and for the construction of a gas turbine drive facili-
ty, following which contractors were selected and contrac-
ts signed. A call for tenders for the supply of the first main 
transformer was also issued, and in April a contract was 
signed with the chosen supplier.
A foundation for the installation of turbines and a ground 
slab for the first gas turbine were constructed by the end 
of June. The construction of steal structure for the drive 
facility began in June. 
In July the assembly of the first gas turbine began, which 
is expected to last by the end of 2007. After a success-
ful completion of start-up tests, the first gas turbine is 
expected to begin trial run in May 2008 and the second in 
September 2008.
The construction of a gas pipeline from Šentrupert to Šo-
štanj is also progressing as planned. The gas pipeline will 
thus reach TEŠ by 1 April 2008. 

The company allocated EUR 10,245,000 to the large-scale 
overhaul of Unit 5. The overhaul was carried out to keep 
the production unit in good working order for another 4-
year period. The costs of the above works were treated as 
a replacement of a part of property, plant and equipment. 
The overhaul was carried out in May and June, after 
approximately 30,000 hours of operation had passed since 
the previous overhaul in 2003. 
During the overhaul, maintenance work, renovation, re-
pairs and reviews were performed primarily in connection 
with the boiler, turbine, desulphurisation plant, generator, 
and high and low voltage engines. Moreover, an overhaul 
of the soot blower system was performed, and the lining of 
return gas channels and burners was renovated. 
During the overhaul, detailed checks and inspections of 
plants revealed that the condition of individual assembli-
es was worse than expected. The largest deviations were 
discovered in the segments of mechanical and construction 
maintenance, especially in connection with high-tempera-
ture parts of the steam system and the radiation of expo-
sed parts.
As a result, additional maintenance teams were engaged, 
which in turn led to higher costs. Significant effort was 
made to ensure timely completion of the overhaul despite 
the above. 
For the quality performance of all works, EUR 14,003,244 
was used altogether, which amounts to 137% of the plan-
ned value. Although the plan was considerably excee-

•
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ded, a maximum period of time elapsed between the two 
overhauls, which means that during detailed inspections 
unexpected matters may arise. Regardless of the increased 
scope of work and the resulting costs, we can affirm that 

long periods between individual overhauls and certain sur-
prises associated with this represent a long-term optimum 
as far as maintenance costs and the plant’s operational 
availability are concerned.

6.12 Maintenance

The plant maintenance strategy is designed to enable the 
company achieve its short-term and long-term objectives. 
Short-term objectives include:

safe and healthy work for workers,
economical use of materials,
economical allocation of working hours,
shorter time limits for repairs of individual 
plants,
prevention of the occurrence and recurrence of 
same failures through preventive measures,
the best possible operational readiness of the 
power plant as a whole,
environment friendly electricity and heat pro-
duction.

Long-term objectives include:
lowering of own prices in real terms,
competitiveness in the electricity market,
maintaining the status of being electricity and 
heat producer, based on lignite technology,
ensuring operation of units until the end of their 
expected service life.

The strategy is based on our own experience and the 
experience of others, and is adapted to modern trends of 
the industry. The maintenance system is supported by the 
MAKSIMO information system. For several years we have 
been performing maintenance depending on the conditi-
on of plants and by carrying out preventive maintenance 
(overhauls). Thanks to an optimal utilisation of funds allo-
cated to maintenance activities, the maintenance strategy 
has been slowly changing in favour of maintenance which 
is carried out depending on the condition of plants. That 
is evident from the frequency of overhauls of individual 
units, which has changed from a rigid two-year interval 
to three or six-year periods. It is also evident from over-
hauls of individual unit assemblies, which are carried out 
in addition to the planned overhauls. The condition for an 
efficient maintenance performance based of this strategy 

•
•
•
•

•

•

•

•
•
•

•

and for achieving the above mentioned objectives is by 
all means a good knowledge of plants and experience of 
technical and maintenance personnel. 
Considering their age and hours of operation, TEŠ’s plants 
already require intensive maintenance. Maintenance is 
done on the basis of plant operation monitoring, opera-
tional events and estimation of the remaining service life 
through the use of demolition and non-demolition me-
thods of material control, and through compliance with 
requirements for safe and reliable operations as well as 
accepted guidelines or strategy for plant operations and 
maintenance.

The entire system of maintenance is divided into:
Regular preventive maintenance which includes inspecti-
ons, controls, analyses and interventions, which all ensure 
reliable operations of all plants. It also includes repairs and 
replacements of individual plant assemblies. Unavoidable 
work on plants is performed at the time of the shutdown 
of units, which is mainly at weekends.
Overhauls of production units and individual assembli-
es. Overhaul in this sense means a series of maintenance 
activities, such as inspections, measurements, installing 
and dismantling, repairs and replacements of machines 
and plant spare parts, which require the elimination of 
machines and plants or of the entire production unit from 
the operation.

Figure 1 shows the trend of declining specific costs of 
regular maintenance.
We should mention that it will not be possible to further 
decrease the costs of regular maintenance because of the 
recent considerable increase in the prices of materials and 
services. Figure 2 shows contractual availability over the 
past five years. Slightly lower availability in 2007 and 
2006 is the result of Unit 5 unreliability after the overhaul 
and failure of Unit 3 turbine rotor. In view of the scale 
of overhaul of Unit 5 and a short post-overhaul testing 
period, this transitional unreliability is understandable.  
Availability was still high in absolute terms.
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Figure	1:	Specific	costs	of	regular	maintenance
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Figure 1: Specific costs of regular maintenance

Overview of regular maintenance costs by individual units:

The costs of maintenance of Units 1 and 2 were higher than planned because both units operated much longer 
than envisaged in the annual plan.
At Unit 3 the envisaged costs were exceeded due to an unexpected failure of turbine rotor and the resulting 
repairs.
The costs related to the gypsum and ash transport system exceeded the plan by 7%. The reason lies in techno-
logical specifics which require very intensive maintenance and cleaning of systems due to strict environmental 
limitations.

 

•

•

•

To sum up:

The plants were maintained in a quality manner, which is among other things also evident from a very high 
contractual availability of power units. Unit 3 turbine failure and the related events somewhat decreased the 
availability which stood at 98.67% but was still very high considering the age of facilities.
Considering that EUR 9,825,000 was used for maintenance, which amounts to good 98% of the envisaged 
funds, we can conclude that all activities carried out on plants were economical in carried out with a view of 
optimising electricity prices.

•

•

Figure	2:	Operating	availability	of	operational	units
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Figure	3:	Costs	of	regular	maintenance	in	comparison	with	the	plan
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6.13  Employees

The number of permanent staff was 
497 on 31 December 2007, which 
is 28 less than at the end of 2006. 
The trend of declining number of 
employees has been more prominent 
in 2007 as a result of organisational 
changes effected in 2006 and 2007.

In addition to the 497 permanent 
staff, the company also had 4 fixed-
term employees and 7 apprentices at 
the end of December 2007, bringing 
the total number of employees in 
2007 to 508. On 31 December 2007, 
the average age structure of perma-

nent staff was 45 years and 1 month, 
whereas the average period of service 
was 24 years and 10 months. On 31 
December 2007 there were 438 male 
permanent employees and 59 female 
permanent employees.
  

Training
In the school year 2007/2008, 30 or 
6% of employees took part in educa-
tion. In the year 2007, 11 employees 
finished their educational process and 
gained a higher level of professional 
education. The average age of emplo-
yees who are included in part-time 
education is 38 years and 10 months.
Beside part-time studies, there were 
also 87 internal and 104 external 
function-specific trainings.

Issues related to disabled persons
In the year 2007 the number of 
employees with disabilities decrea-
sed by five in comparison with the 
previous year. The company thus has 
48 disabled workers (9.36%), among 

these 17 disabled persons were emplo-
yed half-time and 31 full-time. During 
the year one disabled person died and 
employment relationship was termi-
nated for eight disabled persons due 
to retirement or business reasons. 

Sickness benefits
In 2007 sick leave absence stood at 
58,528 hours (in 2006: 65,688 hours) 
or 7,316 working days (in 2006: 8,211 
working days).  For permanent staff, 
the share of sick leave absence stood 
at 5.46%, which is less than in the 
previous year (5.85%), despite the 
overhaul of Unit 5. 

Scholarships
Caring for broader social enviro-
nment is part of TEŠ’s mission, which 
is particularly important due to its 
environmental impacts. The company 
achieves this mission also through 
scholarship policy and the amount 
of funds earmarked for that purpose. 
By granting scholarships in the set 
amount we also create and ensure the 
possibility of obtaining the best staff. 
By granting scholarships to the chil-
dren of employees we maintain and 
develop high degree of loyalty, which 
is extremely important because of the 
specifics of our activity, i.e. electricity 
production. At the end of 2007, TEŠ 
had 97 scholarship receiving students.

6.14  Quality management system

TEŠ has established an integrated management system 
which is comprised of the SIST ISO 9001:2000 quality 
management system, SIST EN ISO 14001:2004 environment 
management system, and OHSAS 18001:1999 occupational 
health and safety management system.

Performance and efficiency of the management system
The performance and efficiency of the established mana-
gement system is determined on the basis of integrated 
internal assessments and external assessments carried out 
by a certification body. During the external assessment 

performed in 2007 no shortcomings were detected which 
would result from inefficient or insufficient functioning of 
the established management system.

The certification body TÜV Management Service - TÜV 
SÜD Sava d. o. o. submitted the following positive ob-
servations regarding the efficiency of TEŠ’s SIST ISO 
9001:2000, ISO 14001:2004 and OHSAS 18001:1999 com-
pliant management system: 

Documentation for all three systems is integrated and 
electronically managed. Procedures carried out under 

•

EDUCATION	STRUCTURE	OF	PERMANENT	STAFF	AS	AT	31/12/2007	

Revenue from heat 2%

Other sales revenue 1.3%

Revenue from electricity 96.7%

SALES REVENUE STRUCTURE 

MATERIALS PURCHASING STRUCTURE

Mainteinance materials 6%

Other materials 0.9%

Other materials 6.8% (other energy products)

Coal 86.3%

Other services 41.6%

Insurance premium 5.7%

Mainteinance services 52.7%

SERVICES PURCHASING STRUCTURE

Cash receipts from financing activities 31.80%

Cash receipts from financing activities 0.14%

Cash receipts from operating activities 68.07%

CASH RECEIPTS 1-12-2007

Cash disbursements for financing activities 18.67%

Cash disbursements for investing activities 24.88%

Cash disbursements for  operating activities 56.45%

CASH DISBURSEMENTS 1-12-2007

STRUCTURE OF LONG-TERM AND SHORT-TERM INDEBTEDNESS
AS AT 31.12.2007 BY INTEREST RATE TYPE

Fixed IR 37.8%

Variable IR 62,2%

STRUCTURE OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 
AT 31.12.2007 (balance sheet)

Short-term liabilities 27%

Long-term liabilities 73%

KVALIFIKACIJSKA STRUKTURA ZAPOSLENIH 
ZA NEDOLOÈEN ÈAS 31.12.2007 

I.-III. 14.5

VII 8.5%

IV. 34.0%

V. 34.6%

VI. 8.2%

VIII. 0.2%

To so pa pozabil prevest, al pa jaz ne najdem?
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the three standards are harmonised (internal assess-
ments, corrective/preventive measures, management 
review, document and record management) and 
performed together.
The company has established very transparent and 
efficient recording of processes, its documents are 
well managed, it has introduced process measurement 
systems, and it manages the production process in a 
transparent and efficient manner. 
The company carries out activities to expand produc-
tion processes through the installation of new gas 
turbines and designing of a new unit that will replace 
some of the older facilities.
Organisation complies with legal and other require-
ments. In the areas where deviations occur, environ-
mental programmes have been established to ensure 
compliance with legal and other requirements.
TEŠ has installed and maintained a fire alarm system 
in all facilities with an increased fire hazard. The com-
pany checks the fire hydrant network and hand-held 
fire extinguishers on a regular basis, and tests the pump 
for increasing pressure in the fire hydrant network on a 
weekly basis. The reconstruction and expansion of the 
fire hydrant network in currently underway. 

•

•

•

•

Internal assessments
25 integrated internal assessments were carried out in 
2007. Assessments were carried out throughout the year, 
enabling reviewers and reviewees to focus on key proces-
ses (a first ever assessment of all technological units was 
performed, which were also thoroughly tested).

Introduction of the ISO/IEC 27001:2005 information secu-
rity management system
In the 2007 the company put together a project team, 
carried out a gap analysis and inventory count, compiled 
a catalogue of risks and vulnerabilities, drew up a que-
stionnaire, assessed the value of assets, and prepared risk 
assessments for individual assets.

Development of the management system
The ISO/IEC 27001:2005 project is aimed at carrying out 
in 2008 internal assessments for the certification asses-
sment of the first degree in accordance with the ISO/IEC 
27001:2005 standard, and at carrying out a reassessment 
under ISO 9001, ISO 14001 and OHSAS 18001 in 2009.

Top management encourages and supports further deve-
lopment of the management system and it progressively 
extends it to external subcontractors and business partners.

6.15  Environment protection activities

Continuing from the previous year 
when the concept of three large 
combustion plants was established, 
TEŠ’s activities in 2007 were marked 
with the final harmonisation with 
requirements regarding emission 
concentrations laid down in Directive 
2001/80/EC. In connection with the 
above, recirculation of flue gases was 
completed during the overhaul of 
Unit 5, which was aimed at cooling 
the mixture of coal and air at the 
location of mills by requiring less 
oxygen. Consequently, the chemical 
structure of combustion was shifted 
towards a reductive atmosphere which 
prevents generation of large quanti-
ties of NOx in places with the highest 
combustion temperatures. To achieve 
a similar effect at Unit 4, the company 
took advantage of the possibility for 
further optimisation of air distribution 
outside the area with the highest tem-
peratures. The difference between the 
two approaches is that at Unit 5 there 
are other possibilities for optimisation 
and further decreases, which will un-
doubtedly prove useful on the transi-
tion to the year 2010 when Slovenia 
will have to meet the binding national 
target regarding the reduction of ni-
trogen oxide emissions. As part of the 
above, we decided to adjust internal 

regulations and make them stricter in 
the area of the emissions of SO2, NOx 
and dust. At the end of October we 
also put the large combustion plant 1 
(Unit 2) to cold reserve, but with Unit 
3 being offline during this time, this 
reserve was put to good use.

With measures taken so far, we mana-
ged keep annual and monthly averages 
of pollutants such as NOx, CO, SO2 and 
dust under emission thresholds at all 
large combustion plants. The only 
exception were average monthly SO2 
emissions at Unit 2. However, none of 
the thresholds has been exceeded since 
the end of October.

Thanks to the above, we again mana-
ged to reduce the number of exceeded 
immissions of sulphur dioxide at the 
most exposed locations around our 
company. Compared to 2006, the 
number of exceeded limits in Šoštanj 
has been reduced by some 8% and at 
Veliki vrh by some 67%. Relative to 
the baseline year of 2002 when we 
started implementing the measures, 
the number of exceeded limits in 
Šoštanj in year 2007 has been reduced 
by as much as 95% and at Veliki vrh 
by 97%, which is better than target 
85% at all locations. 

As indicated before, the daily SO2 
thresholds at Unit 2 (LCP 1 – large 
combustion plant) cannot always 
be maintained, which why Unit 2 
was put to cold reserve on 31 Octo-
ber 2007. As of this date, it is also 
possible that Unit 1 will not always 
operate at full power. However, we do 
not expect major production outages 
since significant efforts were made 
to compensate for this contingency 
with other plants, while at the same 
time work on the construction of gas 
capacities is nearing completion.

In the area of CO2 emissions and the 
resulting contribution to the global 
warming, the situation is a bit less op-
timistic. We used some of CO2 coupons 
for 2007 already in the previous year, 
further increasing their shortage in 
2007. Because at the end of the first 
period prices dropped drastically, the 
economic aspect of CO2 was still relati-
vely favourable, however this gives rise 
to false hopes that this situation will 
extend to the future and that not much 
should be done about it. At TEŠ, we 
are very much aware of the misleading 
message of the first trading period, 
which often works against us. The ad-
vocates of prolonging of the operations 
of old and inefficient plants have the 
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upper hand in situations like these. 
For this reason we should again point 
out that a time when the emission of 
CO2 will only be allowed to the most 
efficient facilities and when old and 
inefficient plants will have to be shut 
down permanently is steadily appro-
aching. TEŠ is aware of that, which is 
why it stands behind its forward-lo-
oking vision. Next year, two new gas 
facilities will contribute to this, which 
will later be followed by sustainability-
oriented Unit 6.

TEŠ puts its money on new techno-
logies and is thus extremely careful 
in investing in the reconstruction of 
the existing plants.  In the area of 
noise emissions, we have to deal with 
numerous worn out facilities that will 
soon be shut down but still require 
immediate repairs due to noise. This 
year we started the construction of 
an anti-noise housing for blower 
fans and the reconstruction of draw 
fans at Unit 5, which consisted of the 
replacement of blades, compensators 
and heat and noise insulation, and of 
the resetting of foundation damper 
elements. With the above measures, 
we decreased noise at practically all 
immission locations, however some 
remain where the noise still exceeds 
threshold values.  

In the first months of the next year 
we will thus have to strengthen our 
reconstruction efforts with an anti-
noise screen for incoming air used in 
combustion at Unit 5 and an anti-noise 
screen for draw fans at Units 1 to 3. As 
for the replacement of the rather worn 
out transformer of Unit 5 and rema-
ining noise produced at the cooling 
tower of Unit 4, which can be compa-
red to numerous naturally occurring 
phenomena, we will try to persuade 

the ministry to consider our arguments 
and obtain more time to resolve the 
problems with the transformer.    

With a view of efficient exploitation 
of combustion residue, the company 
obtained at the beginning of the year a 
construction material compliance certi-
ficate – the Slovene Technical Approval 
(STA) – issued by Slovene Building and 
Civil Engineering Institute for TEŠ’s 
stabilisation material. The approval is 
equivalent to a technical standard on 
the basis of which the acquisition of a 
processing approval and comprehen-
sive environmental permit should be 
facilitated. To speed up the response of 
administrative bodies and harmonise 
views regarding permit acquisition 
procedures, a meeting was organised 
in February with representatives of the 
ministry and the environmental agency, 
representatives of both municipalities, 
and representative of Premogovnik 
Velenje and HSE. Later on, weekly 
meeting were introduced with fewer 
representatives participating.  Within 
two months, a document was prepared 
which reflected an overall approach 
both from the aspect of continued 
filling of subsidence zones with TEŠ’s 
stabilisation material as well as from 
the aspect of improving water quality 
in Lake Velenje. In the document, whi-
ch was also sent to the Ministry of the 
Environment and Spatial Planning, all 
sides committed themselves to follow-
up measures, but mostly to the chan-
nelling of our transport waters to water 
tight installations, to the diverting of 
Premogovnik Velenje waters away from 
the embankment, and to the adjustment 
of the regulation plan.

As part of the previously planned ef-
forts and in conformity with the abo-
ve measures, reduction of the flow rate 

of the remaining hydraulic transport of 
ash sludge was added to the compre-
hensive remediation, which will allow 
for final and complete elimination of 
TEŠ’s water bodies from embankments 
in the area of the subsidence zone. 
What is left for the coming year is the 
construction of a tight pre-sedimenta-
tion chamber and diverting of all wash 
waters to this system. The elimination 
of accumulated water will additionally 
improve the chemical composition of 
the lake water and, consequently, of its 
ecological condition. 

In the area of separate maintenance 
waste collection, we paid particular 
attention to the trends regarding the 
generation of mixed construction and 
municipal waste and their disposal at 
the municipal waste dump. Although 
the above was monitored on a regular 
basis, we failed to decrease the amo-
unt of waste; in fact, the amount inc-
reased. In part this was the result of 
the Unit 5 overhaul, and in part of the 
insufficient number of containers. In 
the next year we plan to increase the 
number of containers for the separate 
collection of glass, cans, wood and 
cardboard packaging at the canteen.    

By the end of December, as part of 
acquiring a comprehensive enviro-
nmental permit, we supplemented the 
application with documents pertain-
ing to Unit 6 although that was not 
yet required. We thus aim to facilitate 
the restructuring of the existing, less 
efficient production.

At TEŠ we believe in the coexistence 
of the production and environment 
protection, which is why we make 
continuous efforts to improve our 
attitude towards the environment.

6.16 Protection of working environment

Protection of working environment
These activities are based on the princi-
ples of the Occupational Safety and He-
alth Act which imposes on the employer 
to ensure safety and health of workers 
at work. Every employer is bound to 
implement measures required for assu-
ring safety and health of workers. This 
includes the prevention of accidents at 
work, and informing and training of 
workers through appropriate organisati-
on and necessary material resources.
In the past year, the Department for 

Occupational Safety carried out preven-
tive measures to ensure a higher level 
of safety and better health protection 
at all organisational levels, in compli-
ance with the acquired OHSAS 18001 
certificate. 

Education and training
For each new employee we carried out 
a training course at which workers 
were acquainted with the basics of 
occupational and fire safety, basics of 
safe work at a working place, rights 

arising from work contracts, and duties 
that should be fulfilled during work. 
The same training course was prepa-
red for trainees and apprentices. For 
those workers who were transferred to 
different positions within the company, 
training course for occupational and 
fire safety was carried out depending 
on the change of their position. 
For all other workers who already pas-
sed the test three years ago, follow-up 
seminars and tests were organised.
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Healthcare
At the occupational medicine clinic, 
preliminary and preventive medical 
check-ups have been made. For some 
workers, follow-up periodic check-up 
were organised and performed. 498 
workers were examined altogether.

Accidents at work
The goal to maintain the number of 
accidents at work at the level of the 
previous year, which had been pur-
sued since the beginning of the year, 
was largely achieved. We recorded 18 
accidents at work (in 2006: 22), all of 
them minor. 

Impact of the operation of production 
units on the environment
Noise measurements were carried out 
inside and outside the power plant’s 
perimeter and at various operating 
regimes. The results of measurements 
represent a basis for the noise reducti-
on project which is underway in Unit 
5. In the area of ionising radiation we 
proposed to gradually eliminate radi-
ation sources and replace them with 
equivalent but harmless technologies. 
We plant to eliminate all sources of 
ionising radiation in 2008.  

Statement of safety and risk assess-
ment
The statement of safety and risk as-
sessment has been revised due to the 
creation of new positions of emplo-
yment. Such changes are made on a 
permanent basis so that the risk asses-
sment is adapted to every change in 
the employment position or working 
environment.

Fire safety
We have recorded 7 minor fires, whi-
ch were all extinguished by workers 
and caused no major damage.

6.17 Environmental responsibility

TEŠ is aware of its impact on the 
environment in which it operates. We 
know that the production of electricity 
effects the environment. We therefore 
took an active role in the development 
of the town by actively participating 
in various projects and providing 
financial support. We cooperate with 
numerous educational institutions, su-
pport the “Young Researcher” project, 
donate to art associations; we sponsor 
the TEŠ octet, mixed choir Svoboda 
from Šoštanj, and brass band “Zarja” 
from Šoštanj. Moreover, we spon-

sor the basketball team “ELEKTRA” 
Šoštanj, volleyball team Šoštanj-To-
polšica and many other clubs and 
associations. We actively participate 
in various humanitarian campaigns, 
supporting institutions and indivi-
duals. TEŠ also recognises its social 
responsibility through its efforts to 
introduce new and cleaner technolo-
gies. Thus the construction of the first 
of two gas turbines began in 2007. 
By partly replacing coal with gas in 
Unit 5, greenhouse gas emissions will 
be reduced by almost 18% per kWh. 

Although TEŠ is the largest thermal 
power plant in Slovenia that is fossil 
fuel fired, it obtained the status of 
qualified producer for wood biomass 
co-combustion, which will result in 
further reduction in CO2 emissions. 
Ultimately, efforts for fitting Unit 6 
with the newest coal technology to 
replace the oldest and environmental-
ly unacceptable production facilities 
signify a responsible attitude not 
only to the local but also to broader 
environment.

6.18 Informatics
Introduction of the ODOS document 
management system
ODOS has been established as a 
centralised document system of the 
HSE Group. The implementation of 
ODOS was carried out in stages, in 
accordance with priorities and units 
that are logical components of such 
a system. After determining the basic 
configuration, setting up code lists, 
and importing the existing documents 
and data, integration with the existing 
information system and permanent 
electronic archive was carried out. 

Maintenance information system 
(Maximo)  
On 1 January 2007, transition was 
made to version 5.2. We expanded 
and changed the records of work 
performed. Moreover, we integrated 
the technical and purchasing part, the 

Špica information system and wor-
king hour’s records, and the working 
shift report application. The area of 
preventive maintenance was also su-
pported with the Maximo application. 

KOPA business system
On 1 January 2007 we successfully 
made a transition to the euro in all 
areas of operation. Certain operating 
segments were electronically supported 
(electronic reporting to the Tax Admi-
nistration of the Republic of Slovenia 
and to the Agency of the Republic 
of Slovenia for Public Legal Records 
and Related Services, submission of 
electronic salary data). We success-
fully changed the software to include 
legislative amendments. The business 
system KOPA was successfully linked 
with ODOS in the areas of travel orders, 
invoice scrapping and presence records.

Establishment of a common disaster 
recovery backup system   
In 2007 we launched activities to 
establish a backup computer cen-
tre for HSE and TEŠ. To ensure the 
continuity of operation, necessary 
hardware and network equipment was 
placed in the WAN environment at the 
location of Premogovnik Velenje.
At the beginning of 2008, data and 
applications will be transferred to the 
above location and synchronisation 
between the two locations will be 
ensured. This will result in high avai-
lability of data for key applications in 
the event of disaster. 

IT services management processes 
Efficient management of IT services 
relies on people, processes and tech-
nology. ITIL (Information Technology 
Infrastructure Library) combines the 
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best practices in the area of IT servi-
ces management. 
A task force has been appointed to 
implement processes in line with 
ITIL technology. The project is aimed 
at improving the performance and 
efficiency of information technology 
and at improving own services while 
considering costs. 

Information system risks
The management of IT risks is aimed 
at enabling the company achieve its 
plans on the basis of better security 
of IT systems which store, process and 
transmit the group’s data. It must also 
provide management with a possibi-
lity to adopt decisions regarding IT 
budget and containment of IT risks 
by supplying sufficient information. 
Moreover, it should support manage-
ment in authorising and approving IT 
systems based on documents concer-
ned with measurement performed as 
part of risk management.

IT risk management is integrated into 
all levels of software and hardware 
use. The first level consists of identi-

fying risks that will support the secu-
rity analysis of the IT system, which 
can result in changed architecture and 
software or hardware design. When 
software is ordered and developed, we 
identify risks that will support the se-
curity analysis of the IT system, which 
can result in changed architecture and 
software or hardware design.
When it is implemented, we identify 
risks that will support the system’s 
implementation within the designed 
operating environment. We then carry 
out periodic risk assessments that 
support periodic authorisation and 
approval of the use of the system, 
which is particularly important with 
regard to changes to the system.
When the system is discontinued or 
replaced, activities are carried out 
to ensure that equipment is properly 
disposed of (destroyed), that we have 
insight and a plan for the use of the 
remaining data, and that we have a 
plan for a safe and systematic transi-
tion to a new system.

Risks are assessed as follows: iden-
tification of system’s features, iden-

tification of risks, identification of 
vulnerabilities, analysis of control, 
assessments of risks. 

Ongoing projects
In 2007 certain activities were la-
unched that will be continued and 
intensified in 2008:

compilation of an IT 
services catalogue and IT 
configuration management 
database,
application of ITIL recom-
mendations to the manage-
ment of IT infrastructure,
deployment of software for 
IT infrastructure control, 
measurement of available 
services, and reporting,
use of a disaster recovery 
centre (DRC), replication of 
data and applications,
use of testing environments 
for the testing of new appli-
cations and modifications.

•

•

•

•

•

6.19 Important events after the end of the financial year

Important events after the end of the financial year have been disclosed in the financial report.
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Energy means warmth. 

We are on the right path.
Reliablity is key to responsible business operation. It is 

the basis of trust in quality. At the Šoštanj Thermal Power 
Plant we guarantee on a daily basis the provision of energy 

that propels the cycle of life. Every degree counts and is 
counted. With accuracy!
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Financial report

The financial statements presented in this report have been 
prepared in conformity with accounting and reporting 
requirements of the Slovene Accounting Standards 2006 
which are based on the Companies Act and the Accounting 
Manual (2006). The company has no subsidiaries and does 
not prepare consolidated financial statements.

In the preparation of the financial statements, the com-
pany considered general valuation rules:

going concern;
consistency;
prudence;
recording of revenue and expenses irrespective 
of their payment;
individual valuation of assets and liabilities.

as well as fundamental accounting assumptions:
accrual basis;
going concern.

The qualitative characteristics of the financial statements 
and consequently of the entire accounting process are 
essentially understandability, relevance, reliability and 
comparability.

•
•
•
•

•

•
•

TPP Šoštanj is a big company and is therefore obligated to 
prepare an annual report at the end of the year. In accordance 
with provisions of Article 57 of the Companies Act, the report 
has to be examined by an auditor in the manner and under 
conditions laid down by law regulating the auditing.

In the preparation of the opening balance sheet for 2007, 
the financial statements, which had been previously presen-
ted in tolars, have been converted at the official exchange 
rate (EUR 1 = SIT 239.64). The conversion has been perfor-
med by individual items of analytical records. The conversi-
on difference in the amount of EUR 0.17 has been recogni-
sed as other revenue, while the nominal capital conversion 
difference of EUR 0.04 has been posted to the debit of 
capital surplus.
The company complied with Interpretation 1 to SAS 2 
(2006) stipulating that on 1 January 2007 emission coupons 
previously valued at 1 tolar per coupon shall now be valued 
at 1 euro per coupon. The conversion of emission coupons 
has been disclosed in notes to the balance sheet, under 
relevant economic categories. The conversion resulted in an 
increase in balance sheet value by EUR 8,736,571.

The financial statements have been drawn up in euros and 
rounded to the nearest unit.

The issue of the financial statements was approved by the 
Managing Director on 31/03/2008.

7.1.1 Foreign exchange rate and method of conversion to the national currency

In the balance sheet and the income statement, accoun-
ting items expressed in a foreign currency were converted 
according to the middle exchange rate of the Bank of 
Slovenia on the day a business event occurred.

The balance of assets and liabilities expressed in a foreign 
currency on the balance sheet date was converted to euros 
at the middle exchange rate of the Bank of Slovenia as at 
the balance sheet date.

7.1.2 Business and geographical segments

Accounting information about operations has been presen-
ted according to business and geographical segments. 

A geographical segment includes countries in a given area.  
Considering that the company’s operations are limited to 
the geographical segment of the Republic of Slovenia, such 
information is not disclosed specially.

A business segment is an autonomous organisational unit 
which is responsible for the achievement of operating 
results. It is a market-oriented part of the company’s orga-
nisational structure, which generates profit or loss through 
its operations. Information used for reporting by business 
segments in based on data collected for external reporting 
purposes and, additionally, on data collected by the com-
pany for internal reporting purposes.

Business	segment Important	products	and	services	of	the	business	segment

Production of electricity Electricity

Steam and hot water Heat, industrial water

Canteen Lunch, restaurant services

Social standard Renting of apartments and holiday premises

7.1 General notes

The company has the following business segments:
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Criteria for the allocation of revenue and expenses are as 
follows:

revenue is normally allocated directly,
expenses are always allocated directly. Indirect 
expenses (general costs of production and ad-
ministration) are allocated to business segments 
on the basis of a simple division.

•
•

Assets, equity and liabilities allocated to corresponding 
segments contain items that are directly attributable to a 
segment as well as items that are attributable to the se-
gment on a reasonable basis.

7.2 Important events after the end of the financial year

Electricity production from biomass
At the end of 2007, test co-combustion of biomass at the 
Unit 5 boiler was carried out. During the test, 232 tons of 
wood biomass – wood chips with calorific value of 8,917 
kJ/kg – were used. During the test, all necessary measu-
rements were taken for the purpose of acquiring a status 
of qualified producer of electricity from renewable sour-
ces. The test co-combustion was successfully completed, 
and in December 2007 the company obtained the status 
of producer of electricity from renewable sources. At the 
beginning of 2008, a contract will be signed with ELES for 
the subsidisation of electricity produced from wood bio-
mass. In 2008 the company plans to produce 125 GWh of 
electricity, for which approximately 140,000 tons of wood 
biomass will be needed.

Acquisition of gas pipeline operating permit
Assembly work was completed on the first utiliser-fitted 
gas turbine. Cold run tests are currently underway which 
will be completed by 1 April 2008 when warm run tests 
shall begin. The construction of the gas pipeline was com-
pleted between the measurement and regulation station 
and the gas turbine, and an application was submitted to 
obtain an operating permit for the gas pipeline. The gas 
pipeline operating permit is expected to be obtained by 27 
March 2008. After it has been acquired, gas will supplied 
to TEŠ and the company will be able to begin warm run 
tests. 
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7.3 Auditor’s report
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7.4 Financial statements

Balance sheet

in EUR

ITEM Note Year	2007 Year	2006

ASSETS 365,064,846	 301,219,215	

A. LONG-TERM	ASSETS 300,938,868	 260,893,893	

I. Intangible assets and long-term accrued revenue and 
deferred costs

1 4,561,635 449,260 

1. Long-term property rights 4,543,521 434,583 

5. Other long-term accrued revenue and deferred costs 18,114 14,677 

II. Property, plant and equipment 2 295,543,704 259,313,694 

1. Land and buildings 39,226,777 42,972,563 

a) Land 2,823,679 2,658,243 

b) Buildings 36,403,098 40,314,320 

2. Production plant and equipment 183,300,995 187,802,827 

3. Other plant and equipment 2,258,272 2,608,040 

4. Property, plant and equipment being acquired 70,757,660 25,930,264 

a) Property, plant and equipment in the course 
of construction

66,692,660 21,170,708 

b) Advances for acquisition of property, plant and equipment 4,065,000 4,759,556 

IV. Long-term investments 3 213,636 213,636 

1. Long-term investments, excluding loans 213,636 213,636 

b) Shares and interests in associated companies 59,503 

c) Other shares and interests 154,133 213,636 

V. Long-term operating receivables 4 175,150 220,187 

3. Long-term operating receivables due from others 175,150 220,187 

VI. Deferred tax assets 5 444,743 697,116 

B. CURRENT	ASSETS 47,587,976	 40,249,890	

I. Assets (disposal groups) held for sale 6 201,723 201,723 

II. Inventories 7 10,406,412 10,189,637 

1. Materials 10,379,454 9,832,338 

4. Advances for inventories 26,958 357,299 

IV. Short-term operating receivables 8 36,978,940 29,854,830 

1. Short-term operating receivables due from group companies 28,426,046 25,578,475 

2. Short-term operating trade receivables 1,828,730 1,277,849 

3. Short-term operating receivables due from others 6,724,164 2,998,506 

V. Cash 9 901 3,700 

C. ACCRUED	REVENUE	AND	DEFERRED	COSTS 10 16,538,002	 75,432	

OFF-BALANCE	SHEET	RECORDS 11 296,224,079	 275,936,719	
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in EUR

ITEM Note Year	2007 Year	2006

EQUITY	AND	LIABILITIES 365,064,846	 301,219,215	

A. EQUITY 12 228,827,734	 197,572,681	

I. Called-up capital 102,227,759 81,363,759 

1. Nominal capital 102,227,759 81,363,759 

II. Capital surplus 116,883,008 116,883,008 

III. Revenue reserves 5,095,336 

1. Legal reserves 485,270 

4. Other revenue reserves 4,610,066 

IV. Revaluation surplus 11,565 11,565 

V. Retained profit or loss (685,651)

VI. Net profit or loss for the period 4,610,066 

B. PROVISIONS	AND	LONG-TERM	ACCRUED	COSTS	AND	DEFERRED	
REVENUE	

10,498,468	 12,488,102	

1. Provisions for pensions and similar liabilities 13 2,021,558 3,030,938 

3. Long-term accrued costs and deferred revenue 14 8,476,910 9,457,164 

C. LONG-TERM	LIABILITIES 55,761,670	 33,946,822	

I. Long-term financial liabilities 15 55,745,190 33,915,029 

2. Long-term financial liabilities to banks 55,745,190 33,915,029 

II. Long-term operating liabilities 16 16,480 31,793 

5. Other long-term operating liabilities 16,480 31,793 

D. SHORT-TERM	LIABILITIES 66,408,745	 55,547,428	

II. Short-term financial liabilities 17 20,672,400 17,083,950 

2. Short-term financial liabilities to banks 20,667,280 17,051,989 

4. Other short-term financial liabilities 5,120 31,961 

III. Short-term operating liabilities 18 45,736,345 38,463,478 

1. Short-term operating liabilities to group companies 20,051,413 16,886,708 

2. Short-term operating trade liabilities 16,088,868 20,088,811 

4. Short-term operating liabilities from advances 184 

5. Other short-term operating liabilities 9,595,880 1,487,959 

E. ACCRUED	COSTS	AND	DEFERRED	REVENUE 19 3,568,229	 1,664,182	

OFF-BALANCE	SHEET	RECORDS 296,224,079	 275,936,719	
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Income statement

 

in EUR

ITEM Note Year	2007 Year	2006

1. Net sales revenue 1 202,420,254 184,980,643

a) Domestic market 202,381,792 184,946,893

                     - from relations with group companies 196,760,493 179,154,319

                     - from relations with others 5,621,299 5,792,574

b) Foreign market 38,462 33,750

3. Capitalised own products and own services 2 6,175,100

4. Other operating revenue (including revaluation operating 
revenue)

3 6,345,172 1,600,888

5. Costs of goods, materials and services 4 144,781,289 133,948,407

a) Cost of goods and materials sold and costs of material used 129,862,172 119,914,251

b) Costs of services 14,919,117 14,034,156

6. Labour costs 5 16,284,384 16,306,961

a) Payroll costs 11,677,254 10,927,000

b) Social security costs 2,525,046 2,506,942

- of which pension insurance costs 1,635,793 1,613,824

c) Other labour costs 2,082,084 2,873,019

7, Write-downs in value 6 29,271,900 27,217,081

a) Depreciation or amortisation 26,033,695 25,363,925

b) Revaluation operating expenses associated with intangible 
assets and property, plant and equipment

3,216,945 1,843,259

c) Revaluation operating expenses for operating current assets 21,260 9,897

8. Other operating expenses 7 10,876,218 4,570,490

- provisions for termination and jubilee benefits 91,879

- other costs 10,876,218 4,478,611

OPERATING	PROFIT	OR	LOSS 13,726,735 4,538,592

Financial revenue 8 103,673 484,733

9. Financial revenue from interests 317,660

10. Financial revenue from loans 85,227 128,757

11. Financial revenue from operating receivables 18,446 38,316

Financial expenses 9 3,212,076 3,347,332

13. Financial expenses for financial liabilities 3,211,189 3,344,386

14. Financial expenses for operating liabilities 887 2,946

PROFIT	OR	LOSS	FROM	ORDINARY	ACTIVITIES 10,618,332 1,675,993

15. Other revenue 27,054 2,316

16. Other expenses 1,960 24,785

TOTAL	PROFIT	OR	LOSS 10,643,426 1,653,524

18. Deferred taxes 10 (252,373) (3,176)

19 NET	PROFIT	OR	LOSS	FOR	THE	PERIOD 10,391,053 1,650,348
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Cash flow statement

in EUR

ITEM Year	2007 Year	2006

A CASH	FLOWS	FROM	OPERATING	ACTIVITIES

a) Cash receipts from operating activities 223,584,723 220,939,876

1 Cash receipts from electricity operations 216,757,362 212,784,936

a) Domestic market 216,757,362 212,784,936

2 Cash receipts from heat operations 4,419,940 5,539,438

3 Other cash receipts from operating activities 2,407,421 2,615,502

b) Cash disbursements for operating activities (185,414,886) (186,199,880)

1 Cash disbursements for electricity operations (128,178,410) (121,131,902)

a) Domestic market (128,178,410) (121,131,902)

2 Cash disbursements for heat operations (3,251,294) (4,277,934)

3 VAT-related cash disbursements (2,775,177) (9,682,081)

4 Cash disbursement for other duties (3,119,004) (2,909,239)

5 Cash disbursements for maintenance, materials and services (30,285,504) (29,279,365)

6 Cash disbursements for salaries and employees’ shares in profit (16,386,639) (16,626,047)

7 Other cash disbursements for operating activities (1,418,858) (2,293,312)

c) Net cash from operating activities 38,169,837 34,739,996

B CASH	FLOWS	FROM	INVESTING	ACTIVITIES

a) Cash receipts from investing activities 444,169 1,199,954

1 Interest and dividends received from investing activities 85,227 128,768

2 Cash receipts from disposal of property, plant and equipment 358,942 753,526

3 Cash receipts from disposal of long-term investments 317,660

b) Cash disbursements for investing activities (81,737,047) (14,312,160)

1 Cash disbursements to acquire intangible assets (75,282)

2 Cash disbursements to acquire property, plant and equipment (81,661,765) (14,293,006)

3 Cash disbursements to acquire long-term investments (19,154)

c) Net cash from investing activities (81,292,878) (13,112,206)

C. CASH	FLOWS	FROM	FINANCING	ACTIVITIES

a) Cash receipts from financing activities 104,439,514

1 Cash proceeds from paid-in capital 20,864,000

2 Cash proceeds from increase in long-term financial liabilities 42,500,000

3 Cash proceeds from increase in short-term financial liabilities 41,075,514

b) Cash disbursements for financing activities (61,319,272) (21,660,424)

1 Interest paid on financing activities (3,166,035) (3,305,087)

2 Cash repayments of long-term financial liabilities (17,077,723) (18,355,337)

3 Cash repayments of short-term financial liabilities (41,075,514)

c) Net cash from financing activities 43,120,242 (21,660,424)

D. CLOSING	BALANCE	OF	CASH 901 3,700

x) Net cash flow for the period (2,799) (32,634)

y) Opening balance of cash 3,700 36,334
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Statement of changes in equity for 2007
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 Statement of changes in equity for 2006
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7.5 Disclosure and valuation of items in the financial statements

7.5.1 Intangible assets and 
long-term accrued revenue 
and deferred costs

Intangible assets of the company include 
investments in long-term property rights 
obtained. These include software licen-
ces for the performance of individual 
functions over a period that is longer 
than a year, and CO2 emission coupons.

Long-term property rights have a 
finite useful life, while the useful life 
of emission coupons is indefinite.
The cost model is used for measure-
ment after recognition.

On initial recognition, these assets are 
carried at cost. Cost includes import 
duties, non-refundable purchase duties 
and loan interest charged until an intan-
gible asset has been available for use. In 
accordance with Interpretation 1 to SAS 
2 issued by the Expert Council of the 
Slovene Institute of Auditors in connecti-
on with emission coupons, emission cou-
pons are valued at 1 euro per coupon.

The company calculates amortisation 
on an individual basis using the 
straight-line method, and according to 
the useful life of an individual fixed 
asset. Amortisation begins when an 
intangible asset is available for use.

Long-term accrued revenue and 
deferred costs include payments made 
in the reserve fund by the company as 
an apartment owner, which shall be 
used for future maintenance under the 
Housing Act.
In relation to the above, a technique 
consisting of direct decreases in value 
via cost accounts is used without resor-
ting to accounts used for adjustments.

7.5.2 Property, plant and 
equipment 

The company’s property, plant and 
equipment include land, buildings, pro-
duction and other equipment, as well 
as immovable property and property, 

plant and equipment in the course of 
construction or manufacturing. 

After initial recognition, the cost model 
is used for measurement of all items of 
property, plant and equipment.

After initial recognition, an item of 
property, plant and equipment is 
carried at cost. The cost comprises 
its purchase price, import duties and 
non-refundable purchase taxes, and 
any directly attributable costs of 
bringing the asset to working conditi-
on for its intended use, especially the 
costs of transportation and installati-
on. The cost also includes interest on 
loans taken out to acquire an item of 
property, plant and equipment, which 
had been charged until the asset has 
been ready for use. It is reduced by 
the amount of discounts received.

The cost does not include costs incurred 
upon the dismantling or removing of the 
items of property, plant and equipment.

Recognition of an item of property, 
plant and equipment in the book kee-
ping records and the balance sheet is 
reversed if an asset has been disposed 
of. The difference between a net sales 
value and the carrying amount of a 
disposed of item of property, plant 
and equipment is recorded as revalua-
tion operating revenue or expense.

Subsequent costs related to property, 
plant and equipment
Subsequent costs incurred in relati-
on to an item of property, plant and 
equipment increase the item’s cost if 
they increase its future economic be-
nefits in excess of the ones originally 
assessed; subsequent costs allowing for 
the extension of the useful life of an 
item of property, plant and equipment 
initially reduce previously accounted 
for accumulated depreciation. 

Repairs or maintenance of property, 
plant and equipment are carried out 
to restore or maintain future econo-
mic benefits expected on the basis of 
the originally assessed standard of 
performance of the assets. As such, 
they are recognised as an expense 
when incurred.

The anticipated costs of major regular 
inspections and repairs (overhauls) 
of property, plant and equipment are 
considered as parts of property, plant 
and equipment. They include repairs 
that are usually carried out every few 
years (periodically) and require sub-
stantial resources. The costs of major 
regular inspections and repairs in-
clude major repairs of property, plant 
and equipment of Unit 4 (first time in 
2009) and Unit 5 (first time in 2007). 
The company separately records the 
purchase of a part of property, plant 
and equipment, and reverses the 
recognition of the estimated residual 
carrying amount of the replaced part. 
The useful life of a part of property, 
plant and equipment recognised in 
this manner is 4 years.

Depreciation
The carrying amount of an item of 
property, plant and equipment is 
decreased through depreciation. The 
depreciation of an item of property, 
plant and equipment begins on the 
first day of the next month after it has 
been available for use. Spare parts of 
higher value are treated as items of 
property, plant and equipment that 
are depreciated regardless of when 
they have been put into use.

The company uses the straight-line 
method of depreciation. The items of 
property, plant and equipment are 
depreciated individually. Land is not 
subject to depreciation.

On the basis of an assessment of fixed 
assets in 2001, depreciation rates 
of property, plant and equipment 
were adjusted in 2002 to reflect the 
estimated useful life of individual pro-
duction units. The depreciation rates 
of individual types of property and 
equipment thus differ with regard to 
the expected useful life of individual 
fixed assets.  

Below are depreciation rates which 
significantly affect the amount of 
depreciation per production unit: 

Name Property	depreciation	rate Production	equipment	depreciation	rate

Unit 1     1.4% - 7.78%     2% - 3.6%

Unit 2     1.4% - 7.78%   2% - 6%

Unit 3     1.4% - 7.78%   1.6% - 6.4%

Unit 4    1.28% - 3.75%   1.3% - 10%

Unit 5 1.67% - 5%  1.6% - 5%
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Property and production equipment 
items of Units 1 to 3 will be deprecia-
ted in full by the end of 2007.

The depreciation rates of property, 
plant and equipment acquired in the 
current and comparable period are as 
follows: 

vehicles    
10% - 20%
furniture          
12.5% - 20%
computer equipment         
20% - 33.3%
production equipment parts 
25%,
other equipment        
12.5% - 20%
buildings                
3%.

Revaluation of property, plant and 
equipment

The revaluation of property, plant and 
equipment items represents a change 
in their carrying amount. It occurs 
due to impairment.

When their carrying amount exceeds 
their recoverable amount, the items of 
property, plant and equipment have 
to be revalued to account for their 
impairment. The recoverable amount 
is the higher of the net sales value or 
the value in use.  

7.5.3 Investments

Investments are financial assets held 
by the company to increase its financi-
al revenue through returns on invest-
ments over the short or long term.

In accounting for an ordinary purchase 
or sale of financial assets, such assets 
are recognised by considering their 
settlement date (payment date).

In the company’s financial statements, 
investments are carried at cost after 
initial recognition.

7.5.4 Operating receivables 

Operating receivables mostly include 
receivables from products sold, ser-
vices provided and from other assets 

•

•

•

•

•

•

sold. Long-term receivables fall due 
within a period that is longer than a 
year, whereas short-term receivables 
fall due within a year.

Receivables of all kinds are initially 
carried at amounts arising from rele-
vant documents (invoices, debit notes, 
contracts) under the assumption that 
they will be collected. Initial receiva-
bles may be subsequently increased or 
reduced by any contractually justi-
fied amount, irrespective of received 
payment or another form of settle-
ment. In the balance sheet, receivables 
expressed in a foreign currency are 
converted at the middle exchange rate 
of the Bank of Slovenia for a corre-
sponding currency on the last day of 
the accounting period.

In the balance sheet, advances are re-
cognised in relation to items to which 
they relate. 

The receivables for which it is assu-
med they will not be settled by their 
due date or in their full amount are 
considered doubtful receivables; if 
they result in legal action, they are 
considered disputable receivables. 
An allowance for such receivables is 
accounted for to the debit of revalu-
ation operating expenses. The “due 
date” is a date which does not exceed 
the time limit agreed in a contract or 
other relevant document by more than 
180 days. An individual assessment of 
a receivable is also considered.

7.5.5 Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are not recognised 
in the accounting records if, individu-
ally or collectively, the amounts of de-
ferred tax assets are deemed immaterial 
or insignificant. As a rule, deferred tax 
assets are recognised if the amounts are 
material (significant), to the extent it is 
probable that future taxable profit will 
available against which a deferred tax 
asset can be used in the future.

7.5.6 Assets (disposal groups) 
held for sale

A disposal group comprises assets 
the carrying amount of which can 
be reasonably expected to be settled 

primarily through disposal rather than 
their further use.  

The items of property, plant and 
equipment and intangible assets that 
are valued using the cost model and 
which qualify for classification as 
available-for-sale assets (disposal 
group) are no longer depreciated or 
amortised; instead they are measured 
at the lower of their carrying amount 
or fair value less selling costs.

7.5.7 Inventories

The inventories of materials are com-
prised of materials in the warehouse, 
in the process of completion or pro-
cessing, or in transit from a supplier, 
if already recorded by the company. 
Materials also include small tools 
(and packaging) with useful life of up 
to one year, but may also comprise 
small tools with useful life exceeding 
one year, if their individual cost does 
exceed EUR 500 in the tolar counter 
value.

Inventories of materials are initially 
valued at cost, which is made up of 
the purchase price, import duties and 
other non-refundable purchase duties, 
and indirect purchase expenses. 
Non-refundable purchase duties also 
include non-refundable value added 
tax. The purchase price is decreased 
by discounts obtained. The company 
has the following types of inventories: 
materials, small tools and unfinished 
or semi-finished products. Inventories 
also include advances for inventories.

The company uses the weighted 
average cost formula to assess the 
value of materials and small tools 
inventories and to record costs and 
expenses. At the end of the year, the 
company did not reassess the value 
of inventories – as if it had used the 
FIFO method. 

The FIFO method is only used to 
reassess the value of coal and biomass 
used, because coal and biomass that 
are purchased first are used first. The 
company does not record coal and 
biomass inventories.
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7.5.8 Cash

Cash comprises ready cash, deposit 
money and cash in transit. Ready 
cash comprises cash on hand, which 
is in the form of banknotes, coins 
and cheques received. Deposit money 
is money in accounts with banks or 
other financial institutions that can 
be used for payments. It comprises all 
cash instantly available on demand 
and cash available at notice. Cash in 
transit is cash being transferred from 
the cash register to an appropriate 
account held with a bank or other 
financial institution and which is 
not recorded as a credit balance in 
accounts with those institutions on 
the same day. 

The carrying amount of an item of cash 
equals its initial nominal value which 
can change in the case of cash deno-
minated in foreign currencies, owing to 
changes in foreign exchange rates.

7.5.9  Off-balance sheet records

Off-balance sheet records include 
business events that have no direct 
impact on items in the financial sta-
tements but are significant in view of 
informing annual report users.

7.5.10 Equity 

Equity represents funds provided 
by company owners as well as the 
company’s liability to its owners. It 
comprises the amounts that the owners 
have invested in the company and the 
amounts that have been generated by 
the company in its operations.

7.5.11 Long-term provisions 
and long-term accrued costs 
and deferred revenue

The purpose of provisions is to accu-
mulate, in the form of accrued costs 
or expenses, the amounts that will 
be available to cover future costs or 
expenses when incurred. Such pro-
visions include provisions for jubilee 
benefits and termination benefits on 
retirement. Provisions are set aside on 
the basis of a calculation prepared by 
a certified actuary.
Long-term accrued costs and defer-
red revenue are created on the basis 
of assets obtained free of charge for 
investments in property, plant and 
equipment and in intangible fixed 

assets. Deferrals made in connection 
with investments in property, plant 
and equipment are credited to opera-
ting revenue based on the amount of 
accumulated depreciation. 
Long-term accrued costs and deferred 
revenue created in connection with 
emission coupons are credited to ope-
rating revenue based on the allocated 
share of coupons received free of 
charge in a financial year.

7.5.12 Debts

Debts can be financial and operating, 
and short-term and long-term.

On initial recognition, all debts are 
valued at amounts arising from 
relevant documents evidencing the 
receipt of cash or settlement of an 
operating debt. 

Short-term and long-term liabilities 
of all kinds are initially carried at 
amounts which are evident from the 
relevant documents, on the assump-
tion that creditors demand their re-
payment. Liabilities are subsequently 
increased by accrued returns (interest, 
other considerations) if an agreement 
to that effect has been concluded with 
the creditor. Liabilities are reduced 
by the amounts repaid and any other 
settlements that may be agreed upon 
with the creditor. Long-term liabilities 
are also decreased by the portion that 
will have to be repaid in less than a 
year, this being recorded as a short-
term liability.

Debts are not adjusted for the purcha-
sing power of the national currency 
unless they are expressed in a foreign 
currency and there is a change in 
the foreign exchange rate, or if they 
are expressed in the national curren-
cy and the contracting parties have 
agreed on the revaluation to maintain 
the real value of debts. In the balance 
sheet, debts expressed in a foreign 
currency are converted at the middle 
exchange rate of the Bank of Slovenia 
for a corresponding currency on the 
last day of the accounting period.

7.5.13 Short-term accruals and 
deferrals

On the balance sheet, the item of 
short-term accrued revenue and defer-
red costs included short-term deferred 
costs and short-term accrued revenue. 

The amounts of short-term deferred 
costs and short-term accrued revenue 
are justified and evident from relevant 
documents containing information on 
their inception. If in real terms these 
items are subsequently changed, costs 
incurred up to that moment or regular 
expenses are adjusted for the difference. 

On the balance sheet date, short-term 
accrued costs and deferred revenue 
specifically included accrued costs 
or expenses and value added tax 
on advances paid. They are evident 
from relevant documents containing 
information on their inception or are 
determined or estimated on the basis 
of the actual amount of these costs. If 
in real terms these items are sub-
sequently changed, costs incurred up 
to that moment or regular expenses 
are adjusted for the difference.

7.5.14 Recognition of revenue

Revenue is recognised if increases in 
economic benefits during the accoun-
ting period are associated with incre-
ases in assets or decreases in liabilities 
and those increases can be reliably 
measured. Revenue is recognised 
when it can be reasonably expected 
it will result in receipts, unless such 
receipts had arisen when the revenue 
was recorded. Revenue is comprised of 
operating, financial and other revenue.

Revenue from the sale of own pro-
ducts and services is measured on 
the basis of selling prices indicated 
in invoices and other documents, less 
discounts given at the time of the sale 
or afterwards.

Capitalised own products and services 
include services created within the 
company and recognised as property, 
plant and equipment together with 
materials used.

Other operating revenue includes 
government grants received for the 
purpose of acquiring fixed assets, 
emission coupons received from the 
state free of charge (under the Enviro-
nment Protection Act), and premiums 
received for exceeding the disabled 
persons employment quota laid down 
in the Vocational Rehabilitation and 
Employment of Disabled Persons Act.

Revaluation operating revenue is 
revenue recognised upon the disposal 
of property, plant and equipment, and 
revenue recorded upon a decrease in the 
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reversal of allowances for receivables in 
connection with short-term receivables.

Financial revenue is revenue arising 
in connection with short-term invest-
ments and receivables. Financial reve-
nue is recognised upon the settlement 
of accounts irrespective of receipts, un-
less there is reasonable doubt as to its 
amount, maturity and recoverability.

Other revenue is comprised of extra-
ordinary items. It is disclosed in actual 
amounts.

7.5.15 Recognition of expenses

Expenses are recognised if decrea-
ses in economic benefits during the 
accounting period are associated 
with decreases in assets or increases 
in liabilities and such decreases can 

be reliably measured. Expenses are 
comprised of operating, financial and 
other expenses.

Operating expenses are recognised 
upon the purchase of merchandise or 
the completion of services.

Revaluation operating expenses repre-
sent the surplus of the carrying amo-
unt over the selling price of property, 
plant and equipment, as well as the 
write-off of property, plant and equi-
pment and of operating receivables.

Financial expenses are incurred in 
association with debts, short-term in-
vestments and short-term receivables. 
They are recognised when statements 
of account are prepared, regardless of 
cash payments associated with them.
Interest is recognised in proportion to 

the previous year and with regard to 
the outstanding amount of the princi-
pal and the agreed-upon interest rate.

Other expenses are comprised of 
extraordinary items.

7.5.16 Cash flow statement

The cash flow statement has been 
prepared according to the indirect 
method. 

7.5.17 Statement of changes 
in equity

The statement of changes in equi-
ty has been prepared according to 
Format II, in the form of a composite 
spreadsheet which presents changes in 
all equity components. 

7.6     Notes to the financial statements

7.6.1   Notes to the balance sheet

Note 1

Intangible assets and long-term accrued revenue and deferred costs                   EUR 4,561,635

Intangible assets                                                                                                          EUR 4,543,521        

in	EUR 2007 2006 Index

Intangible assets 4,543,521 434,583 1,045

Other long-term accrued 
revenue and deferred costs

18,114 14,677 123

TOTAL 4,561,635 449,260 1,015

in	EUR 2007 2006 Index

Licences and other 
software

 432,769      397,974      109     

Emission coupons 4,110,752 36,609  11,229     

TOTAL 4,543,521 434,583 1,045

The predominant part of the increase in long-term property rights refers to software installed on the 
Unit 5 control computer and to the purchase of an investment management application.
Depending on their useful lives, amortisation rates of licences range between 14.3% and 33.3%.

Pursuant to the Environment Protection Act and the Ordinance on the National Plan for the Allocation 
of Emission Coupons for the period 2005-2007, the Government allocated to the company 13,395,813 
emission coupons free of charge. By the end of 2007, the number of coupons decreased by the amount 
of surrendered coupons for emissions released in 2005 (4,622,633) and 2006 (4,662,428). Coupons for 
greenhouse gas emissions released by TEŠ in 2007 will be surrendered by 30 April 2008.  
At the end of 2006, the company held 8,773,180 emission coupons that had been received free of 
charge (SIT 8,773,180). After the conversion from tolars to euros, the value of emissions coupons 
amounted to EUR 36,609. In accordance with Interpretation 1 to SAS 2 (2006) stipulating that as of 
1 January 2007 emission coupons previously valued at 1 tolar per coupon shall now be valued at 1 
euro, the value of emission coupons increased by EUR 8,736,571 to EUR 8,773,180.
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Changes in intangible fixed assets

Note 2

Property, plant and equipment                                                                                  EUR 295,543,704

Assets were assessed by certified appraisers according to the balance as at 31/12/2001. There was no 
indication as to the impairment of assets in 2007.

Changes in property, plant and equipment

COST Balance	as	at	01/01 Increases	 Disposals Transfers	between	 Balance	as	at		31/12

Licences and other software 549,467 82,327 51,959 683,753

Emission coupons 8,773,180 (4,662,428) 4,110,752

TOTAL 9,322,647 82,327 (4,662,428) 51,959 4,794,505

ACCUMULATED
AMORTISATION

Balance	as	at	
01/01

Amortisation Balance	as	at	 	
31/12

CARRYING	
AMOUNT	as	at	

31/12

CARRYING	
AMOUNT	as	at	

1/1

Licences and other software 151,493 99,491 250,984 432,769 397,974

Emission coupons 4,110,752 8,773,180

TOTAL 151,493 99,491 250,984 4,543,521 9,171,154

in	EUR 2007 2006 Index

Land  2,823,679      2,658,243      106     

Buildings  36,403,098      40,314,320      90     

Production plant and equipment  183,300,995      187,802,827      98     

Other plant and equipment  2,258,272      2,608,040      87     

Property, plant and equipment 
in the course 
of construction

 66,692,660      21,170,708      315     

Advances for acquisition of property, 
plant and equipment

 4,065,000      4,759,556      85     

TOTAL 295,543,704 259,313,694 114

COST Balance	as	at	
01/01

Acquisitions Disposals Transfers	
between	
accounts	

Balance	as	at	
31/12

Land  2,658,243     (150) 165,586  2,823,679     

Buildings  211,396,519     (252,640) 490,681  211,634,560     

Production plant and equipment  944,154,632      92,628     (10,065,865) 19,322,260  953,503,655     

Other plant and equipment  8,954,345      301,234     (366,163) 36,094  8,925,510     

Property, plant and equipment 
in the course of construction or 
manufacturing

 21,170,708      65,865,400     (276,868) (20,066,580)  66,692,660     

TOTAL 1,188,334,447 66,259,262 (10,961,686) (51,959) 1,243,580,064
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Land                             EUR 2,823,679

Increase in the value of land refers to land purchased for the purpose of constructing Unit 6. 

Buildings                             EUR 36,403,098

The cost of buildings increased by the amount of additional capitalisation of the industrial water 
distribution system and the capitalisation of residential buildings. Residential buildings are located 
in the immediate vicinity of the thermal power plant; the purchase was necessary because of the 
planned construction of Unit 6.
In May 2007, the cost of buildings decreased due to the classification of holiday premises in Croatia 
as property, plant and equipment held for sale.

Production plant, machinery and other equipment                               EUR 185,559,267

A decrease in the value of production plant, machinery and other equipment is the result of accumu-
lated depreciation of these assets which exceeded investments in these assets in 2007. 
The value of production equipment was increased by the recognised amount of a major repair of 
Unit 5 (EUR 13,853,084) in the form of a purchase of a property, plant and equipment item. On the 
basis of the residual carrying amount of the replaced part, production equipment for which it was 
determined during the repair of Unit 5 to be worn out was excluded from records. The bulk of re-
pairs took place on the generator, turbine, boiler and desulphurisation plant of Unit 5.
Increases in the value of the production equipment also include the capitalisation of investments in 
the reliability of production in the amount of EUR 5,470,078 (of which EUR 3.3 million is attribut-
able to the Unit 5 management system). 

Advances for property, plant and equipment                        EUR 4,065,000

Advances for property, plant and equipment represent advances to suppliers in connection with 
investments in the project of a Unit 5 gas combined system construction, project for the construction 
of Unit 6, and advances for other projects.

Property, plant and equipment in the course of construction                EUR 66,692,660

The preponderant part of the increase in fixed assets in the course of construction refers to the con-
struction of the new Unit 6 – execution of the retained contract, which guarantees TEŠ the delivery 
of main technological unit for Unit 6 in the second half of 2014, and to investments in the construc-
tion of the Unit 5 gas combined system. These increases also include a major repair, i.e. large-scale 
overhaul of Unit 5 (normally carried out every 4 years). 
In 2007 the amount of capitalised projects totalled EUR 20,066,580. The total value of unfinished 
projects is EUR 66,692,660.

ACCUMULATED	
DEPRECIATION

Balance	as	
at	01/01

Depreciation Disposals Balance	as	at	
31/12

CARRYING	
AMOUNT	as	at	

31/12

CARRYING	
AMOUNT	as	at	

01/01

Land  -        2,823,679      2,658,243     

Buildings 171,082,199      4,272,231     (122,968) 175,231,462      36,403,098      40,314,320     

Production plant and 
equipment

756,351,805      20,992,819     (7,141,964) 770,202,660      183,300,995      187,802,827     

Other plant and equipment  6,346,305      669,154     (348,221)  6,667,238      2,258,272      2,608,040     

Property, plant and equi-
pment in the course of 
construction or manufac-
turing

 66,692,660      21,170,708     

TOTAL 933,780,309 25,934,204 (7,613,153) 952,101,360 291,478,704 254,554,138
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Changes in investments in property, plant and equipment in the course of construction

The company’s investments in property, plant and equipment were financed from long-term loans in 
the amount of EUR 42,500,000; the remainder was financed from other internal sources.

Note 3

Long-term investments                             EUR 213,636 

Long-term investments are classified as available-for-sale financial assets. The fair value of long-
term investments disclosed in the balance sheet represents their cost.

Investments in interests of associates include a 26% interest in the company Erico. Under the Com-
panies Act (ZGD-1), Erico was transformed from an environment research institute into a limited 
liability company in October 2007. 

Other interests represent funds invested in holiday homes (Krvavec, Rab, Portorož). The funds were 
invested and pooled at EGS Maribor (the legal successor of ELDOM d.o.o. Maribor).

Note 4

Long-term operating receivables due from others                                     EUR 175,150 

Long-term operating receivables are not secured and have not yet fallen due.

Breakdown of long-term operating receivables by maturity         

in	EUR Balance	as	at	
31/12

Increases	 Disposals Transfers	between	
accounts

Balance	as	at	
01/01

Gas combined system of Unit 5 
and PKS 5/gas

 27,603,168     11,622,539      15,980,629     

Investments in production reliability  8,117,829     10,500,286     (5,415,476)  3,033,019     

Investments documents  351,747     51,759 (276,868)  576,856     

Investments in Unit 6  28,079,693     27,126,867     (451,496)  1,404,322     

PPE in acquisition  2,540,223      2,560,705     (196,364)  175,882     

Unit 5 large-scale overhauls  14,003,244     (14,003,244)

TOTAL 66,692,660 65,865,400 (276,868) (20,066,580) 21,170,708

in	EUR 2007 2006 Index

Interests in associates  59,503     

Other interests  154,133      213,636      72     

TOTAL  213,636      213,636     100

in	EUR 2007 2006 Index

Long-term advances given 94,823 96,502 98

Long-term receivables from 
apartment buyers

80,327 123,685 65

TOTAL 175,150 220,187 80

in	EUR Amount	of	receivables up	to	3	years	 3	to	5	years over	5	years

Long-term advances 
given

 94,823      3,358      -        91,465     

Long-term receivables 
from apartment buyers

 80,327      31,311      28,096      20,920     
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Note 5

Deferred tax assets                                                                                                         EUR 444,743

Deferred tax assets have been disclosed solely in connection with the creation of long-term provi-
sions for jubilee benefits and termination benefits on retirement. The company did not create de-
ferred tax assets in connection with a retained tax loss (EUR 10,421,587) because it cannot reliably 
predict future taxable profit due to the lack of conclusive evidence. 

Note 6

Assets (disposal groups) held for sale                 EUR 201,723

In 2006 the Crikvenica holiday complex was classified as an item of property, plant and equipment 
held for sales because it can be reasonably expected it will be settled with a sale.

Note 7

Inventories               EUR 10,406,412

Inventories are mostly comprised of spare parts in the amount of EUR 7,501,740 and maintenance 
materials in the amount of EUR 2,280,792. These are needed to repair defects on the production 
equipment as soon as possible, thus ensuring the reliability of operation. 
After the inventory count of materials, surpluses of EUR 2,233 and deficits of EUR 6,232 were deter-
mined. 
The carrying amount of inventories does not exceed their realisable value.

Note 8

Short-term operating receivables                        EUR 36,978,940
 

On the balance sheet date, the fair value of operating receivables was equal to their carrying amount.

The greater part of receivables from group companies consists of receivables to Holding Slovenske ele-
ktrarne d.o.o. They arise from the sale of electricity and have been secured with a blank bill of exchange. 

The collateralisation of other receivables is not required due to their specific nature.

in	EUR 2007 2006 Index

Assets held for sale  201.723      201.723     100

in	EUR Balance	as	at	31/12 Created Decreased Balance	as	at	01/01

Deferred tax assets  444,743     (226,449) (25,924)  697,116     

in	EUR 2007 2006 Index

Materials  10.222.393      9.687.266      106     

Small tools and packaging  157.061      145.072      108     

Advances given for inventories  26.958      357.299     8

TOTAL 10.406.412 10.189.637 102

in	EUR 2007 2006 Index

Short-term operating receivables from HSE group companies 28,355,854     25,578,435      111     

Short-term operating receivables from group companies 
- other

 70,192      40      175,480     

Short-term operating trade receivables  1,884,200      1,317,934      143     

Short-term operating receivables due from others  6,724,637      2,998,506      224     

Allowance for operating receivables (55,943) (40,085)  140     

TOTAL 36,978,940 29,854,830 124
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Breakdown of short-term operating receivables by maturity

Overdue and outstanding trade receivables represent receivables from a buyer of heat and from 
apartment rents.

Note 9

Cash                 EUR 901

Note 10

Accrued revenue and deferred costs                        EUR 16,538,002

Short-term deferred costs refer to services that were invoiced but not yet provided in 2007.
 
Short-term accrued revenue represents revenue arising from a change in the amount for leased 
capacity in 2007, and revenue used for the settlement of costs arising from the purchase of insuf-
ficient CO2 emission coupons in 2007, plus VAT. Revenue arises from the Annex to the Contract for 
purchase of coal, lease of capacity and purchase of electricity.

Note 11

Off-balance sheet records            EUR 296,224,079

The company uses off-balance sheet records to record guarantees, collaterals, assignments of receiv-
ables, damages and other liabilities, liabilities to the company member, receivables from unutilised 
tax loss from previous years, employee debts incurred in relation to small tools, tools, protective 
equipment and other.
The amount of liabilities to group companies recorded in off-balance sheet records totalled EUR 
258,220,283. They mostly include liabilities to the company member HSE d.o.o. Ljubljana.

in	EUR Amount	of	
receivables

not	yet	
due

overdue	
up	to	3	
months

overdue	
from	3	to	6	

months

overdue	
from	6	to	9	

months

overdue	
over	9	

months

 Receivables from HSE group companies 28,355,854     28,355,854     

 Receivables from group companies - other  70,192      70,192     

 Trade receivables  1,884,200      1,581,319      252,747      14,691      4,446      30,997     

 Receivables from others  6,724,637      6,721,286      3,351     

in	EUR 2007 2006

Cash on hand  551     

Front-loaded euro cash 0 804

Cash in transaction 
account

 350      1,744     

Foreign currency accounts  0      1,152     

TOTAL 901 3,700

in	EUR 2007 2006 Index

Short-term deferred costs 
and expenses

133,249 75,432 177

Short-term accrued 
revenue

16,404,753

TOTAL 16,538,002 75,432 21,924

in	EUR 2007 2006 Index

Off-balance sheet records  296,224,079      275,936,719     107
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Note 12

Equity                         EUR 228,827,734

The company’s total equity comprises nominal capital, capital surplus, revenue reserves, revaluation 
surplus and temporarily unallocated net profit for the year.

The accounting amount of the company’s nominal capital is determined in the Articles of Incorpora-
tion in has been duly registered with the Court.
The nominal capital of the company totals EUR 102,227,759. In 2007 it was increased by an ad-
ditional contribution of the company member in the amount of EUR 20,864,000. The payment was 
made on 30 November 2007, and on 17 December 2007 it was entered in the Companies Registry. 

Capital surplus totals EUR 116,883,008. It is the result of the reversal of general equity revaluation 
adjustment.

Pursuant to the Companies Act, net profit for the year 2007, which totalled EUR 10,391,053, was 
used to offset the retained loss of EUR 685,651, to create legal reserves of EUR 485,270, and to cre-
ate other reserves of EUR 4,610,066. Reserves have been created with a view to setting aside own 
funds for investment activities. The Supervisory Board confirmed the proposed allocation of net 
profit.
The remaining net profit for the year totalled EUR 4,610,066.

Specific equity revaluation adjustment relating to land totalled EUR 11,565.

Note 13

Provisions for pensions and similar liabilities                         EUR 2,021,558

Long-term provisions represent provisions for jubilee benefits and termination benefits on retirement 
in the amount determined by the actuarial calculation of 31 December 2007. At the end of the year, 
long-term provisions were adjusted to the amount needed for the settlement of envisaged future 
obligations. 

Note 14

Long-term accrued costs and deferred revenue                                   EUR 8,476,910

Long-term accrued costs and deferred revenue in the amount of EUR 8,363,274 arise from govern-
ment grants received for the acquisition of fixed assets. They are utilised in proportion to accumu-
lated depreciation. Owing to a write-off of a worn out fixed asset, a corresponding share of long-
term accrued costs and deferred revenue relating to Unit 5 management system and desulphurisation 
plant (EUR 70,071) was reversed. 

in	EUR Balance	as	at	31/12 Created Decreased Balance	as	at	01/01

Provisions for jubilee benefits 779,653 (92,135) (76,344) 948,132 

Provisions for termination benefits  1,241,905     (804,532) (36,369)  2,082,806     

TOTAL 2,021,558 (896,667) (112,713) 3,030,938

in	EUR Funding	source Balance	as	at	
31/12

Increases/transfers	
between	accounts

Decreases Balance	as	at	
01/01

ODP of Unit 4  State budget  3,107,907     (388,492)  3,496,399     

 ECO fund  3,234,760     (404,349)  3,639,109     

RDP of Unit 5  State budget  1,862,145     (179,821)  2,041,966     

Unit 4 management system  Deferral of 
1994 revenue 

 158,462     (43,186)  201,648     

Emission coupons  79,502     (4,190,176)  4,110,674     

Assigned contributions - the disabled  113,636      53,079      60,557     

TOTAL 8,476,910 132,581 (5,206,024) 13,550,353
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Deferrals include emission coupons received from the state free of charge for the period 2005-2007. 
At the end of 2006, the balance of coupons was converted into euros in accordance with Interpreta-
tion 1 to SAS 2 (2006) and was increased by EUR 4,093,189 as a result. The transfer of EUR 79,502 
between accounts represents a transfer from the item of short-term accrued costs and deferred 
revenue.  A proportionate share of coupons received free of charge for 2007 consists of 4,190,176 
coupons received under the Emission Coupon Decision.

Deferrals arising from the exemption from the payment of contributions have been created in ac-
cordance with the Employment of Disabled Persons Act. They are used to settle the costs indicated in 
the above Act.

Note 15

Long-term financial liabilities                                                  EUR 55,745,190

The predominant part of long-term loans are denominated in EUR. In 2007 the nominal interest rate 
for the loans ranged between 2.41% to 6.6%. 
In the balance sheet as at 31 December 2007, long-term financial liabilities denominated in a foreign 
currency have been converted at the middle exchange rate of the Bank of Slovenia valid on the bal-
ance sheet date.

Maturity of long-term financial liabilities

Changes in long-term financial liabilities

In 2007 the repayments of principals and interest were made in line by observing the dates of matu-
rity and in accordance with existing depreciation plans.
The portion of financial liabilities in the amount of EUR 20,672,400 which will fall due in 2008 has 
been recorded under short-term financing liabilities.

in	EUR 2007 2006 Index

Long-term loans taken out 
with domestic banks

 38,266,080      8,105,953      472     

Long-term loans taken out 
with foreign banks

 17,479,110      25,809,076      68     

TOTAL 55,745,190 33,915,029 164

in	EUR 2007

Maturity by 31/12/2010  22,006,862     

Maturity between 01/01/2011 and 31/12/2012  20,546,338     

Maturity after 01/01/2013  13,191,990  

in	EUR Balance	as	at	
01/01

Repayment	of	
principals

Revaluation/inc-
rease

Balance	as	at	
31/12

Short-term	
part

Long-term	
part

Long-term loans taken 
out with foreign banks

 34,139,042      8,329,966     25,809,076 8,329,966 17,479,110 

Long-term loans taken 
out with domestic banks

 16,827,976      8,720,784     42,496,201  50,603,393      12,337,313      38,266,080     

Long-term loans 
taken out with others

 31,961      26,973      133      5,121      5,121     

TOTAL 50,998,979 17,077,723 42,496,334 76,417,590 20,672,400 55,745,190 
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Collateralisation of financial liabilities

On the balance sheet date, 36.9% of TPP Šoštanj’s financial liabilities were secured with a state guar-
antee, 46.7% with assignments or pledged receivables, and 16.4% with bills of exchange.

Note 16

Long-term operating liabilities                                         EUR 16,480

Long-term operating liabilities include liabilities to the Housing Fund of the Republic of Slovenia and the 
Slovene Compensation Fund arising from the sale of apartments under the Housing Act (OG RS 18/91). 

Note 17

Short-term financial liabilities                                          EUR 20,672,400

On the balance sheet date, short-term financial liabilities consisted of principals of long-term debts 
that fall due in 2008, as provided under loan agreements. 

Note 18

Short-term operating liabilities                        EUR 45,736,345

The largest share of liabilities to group companies consists of liabilities to Premogovnik Velenje d.d. 
for coal supplied between November and the end of the year, which totalled EUR 19,936,714. The 
liabilities were not yet due on the balance sheet date.

in	EUR 2007 2006

Government guarantees  28,203,494      39,371,212     

Assignments, pledge of receivables  35,708,976      11,579,769     

Bills of exchange  12,505,120      47,998     

TOTAL 76,417,590 50,998,979

in	EUR 2007 2006 Index

Long-term operating liabilities  16,480      31,793      52     

in	EUR 2007 2006 Index

Short-term part of long-term loans 
taken out with domestic banks

 12,337,314      8,722,024      141     

Short-term part of long-term loans 
taken out with foreign banks

 8,329,966      8,329,966      100     

Short-term part of long-term loans 
taken out with other domestic 
entities

 5,120      31,960      16     

TOTAL 20,672,400 17,083,950 121

in	EUR 2007 2006 Index

Short-term liabilities to group companies  20,051.413      16.886.708      119     

Short-term trade liabilities  16.089.053      20.088.811      80     

Short-term liabilities to employees  1.219.024      969.955      126     

Short-term liabilities to state and other 
institutions

 8.160.875      212.472      3.841     

Other liabilities  215.980      305.532      71     

TOTAL 45.736.345 38.463.478 119
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Short-term liabilities to state and other institutions include a carbon tax liability. The liability for 
2007 totals EUR 4,908,817 (1 coupon per ton of CO2) and has to be settled by 30 April 2008.
At the end of the year 2006, the company recorded a liability in respect of emissions released in 
2006 (SIT 4,662,839). In accordance with Interpretation 1 tot SAS 2 (2006), the liabilities have been 
converted to euros and were increased by EUR 4,643,382 as a result. The liability was settled by sur-
rendering an appropriate amount of emission coupons. 

The company normally settles its liabilities in due time; overdue or outstanding liabilities amount to 
only EUR 18,603.

Note 19

Accrued costs and deferred revenue                              EUR 3,568,229

The predominant share of the increase in accrued costs and deferred revenue refers to the accrued 
costs of emissions coupons. 

 

7.6.2 Notes to the income statement

Costs by functional groups            EUR 191,800,485

In accordance with SAS 25.25, the company has broken down the costs by functional groups, having 
prepared the income statement using the Format I.

                        

Note 1

Net sales revenue                       EUR 202,420,254

Net sales revenue in the amount of EUR 202,420,254 has been carried at the invoice amount. The 
predominant part of revenue (99%) was generated through electricity and heat sales. 

in	EUR 2007 2006 Index

Accrued costs and 
expenses

 3,568,229      1,664,182      214     

in	EUR 2007 2006 Index

Production costs of sold 
quantities

 181,948,902      170,489,217      107     

General and administrative costs  9,823,119      9,672,751      102     

Selling costs  28,464      27,813      102     

TOTAL 191,800,485 180,189,781 106

in	EUR 2007 2006 Index

Sales of electricity 
and heat

 200,750,647      183,219,139      110     

Sales in foreign markets  38,462      33,750      114     

Sales of services - other  1,173,387      1,061,977      110     

Sales of materials  457,758      665,777      69     

TOTAL 202,420,254 184,980,643 109
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Note 2

Capitalised own products and own services             EUR 6,175,100

Capitalised own products and services represent materials used and internal work performed during the over-
haul of Unit 5, which has been recognised as an increase in the value of parts of Unit 5 production equipment.

Note 3

Other operating revenue                           EUR 6,345,172

Revenue from the reversal of provisions in the amount of EUR 896,667 was recognised as a result of the 
lowering of liabilities to employees in connection with future jubilee benefits and termination benefits on 
retirement in accordance with the enterprise collective labour agreement (Annex as of May 2007).
Other operating revenue in the amount of EUR 1,015,848 represents the utilisation of long-term 
accrued costs and deferred revenue based on the amount of accumulated depreciation of property, 
plant and equipment, and reversal of a deferral made due to a write-off of a worn out fixed asset.

Under the Emission Coupon Decision issued by the Ministry of the Environment and Spatial Plan-
ning, revenue from emission coupons in the amount of EUR 4,190,176 has been recognised in the 
proportionate share for 2007. 

Note 4                      

Costs of materials and services                      EUR 144,781,289

The predominant part of the 2007 costs of materials represents the consumption of coal as an energy 
product used for the production of electricity and heat, and contingent costs of coal. 

The costs of services associated with the maintenance of property, plant and equipment include the 
costs of regular maintenance amounting to EUR 5,352,214 and the costs of the overhaul (periodic) in 
the amount of EUR 2,515,249.

Other costs include the costs of:
 annual report audit in the amount of EUR 32,127,
 other non-audit services in the amount of EUR 1,080, and
tax consulting services in the amount of EUR 495.

•
•
•

in	EUR 2007 2006 Index

Capitalised own products 
and own services

6,175,100

in	EUR 2007 2006 Index

Revenue from the reversal of 
provisions

 896,667     

Subsidies, grants - for FA  1,015,848      1,067,751      95     

Emission coupons  4,190,176      19,125     

Bonuses for exceeding the 
disabled persons employment 
quotas

 11,585      13,303      87     

Revaluation operating revenue  230,896      500,709      46     

TOTAL 6,345,172 1,600,888 396

in	EUR 2007 2006 Index

Costs of materials  120,899,936      116,355,702      104     

Costs of energy  25,899      23,096      112     

Other costs of materials  8,936,337      3,535,453      253     

Costs of PPE maintainance 
services

 7,867,463      7,142,266      110     

Costs of other services  7,051,654      6,891,890      102     

TOTAL 144,781,289 133,948,407 108
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Note 5

Labour costs               EUR 16,284,384

Labour costs are based on the collective labour agreement and employment contracts. Salaries are 
comprised of the fixed pay, allowances (for less favourable working hours, environment impacts, 
etc.) and the variable pay which reflects performance.
Salary compensations include compensations for absence resulting from illness, annual leave, train-
ing and other. Employees are entitled to compensation either on the basis of the Employment Rela-
tionship Act, collective labour agreement or employment contract. 

The costs of additional pension insurance refer to the co-funding of the pension scheme by the employer 
under the Contract for the establishment of voluntary additional pension insurance scheme entered into 
by Termoelektrarna Šoštanj d.o.o. and TPP Šoštanj trade union. The pension scheme labelled PN1 is oper-
ated by the company Kapitalska družba pokojninskega in invalidskega zavarovanja d.d., Ljubljana.

Other employee receipts, fringe benefits and refunds refer to holiday allowances, jubilee benefits, 
termination benefits and other.

Note 6

Write-downs in value              EUR 29,271,900

Accumulated depreciation or amortisation for the year 2007 totals EUR 26,033,695. It has been 
accounted for at depreciation rates determined after the appraisal or impairment of fixed assets in 
2001 or at rates applicable to new purchases and required by an internal customer.

Revaluation operating expenses in the amount of EUR 3,238,205 refer to:
reversal of the estimated residual carrying amount of the replaced parts of the Unit 5 production  
equipment (generator, turbine, boiler, desulphurisation plant) in the amount of EUR 2,922,429;
revaluation operating expenses in the amount of EUR 276,868 refer to the write-off of investment and 
study documents in the period before 2007. The documents were written off because no further eco-
nomic benefits could have been expected to arise from them;
write-off of unusable goods in the amount of their carrying amount of EUR 17,648. The assets were 
written off because they were worn out, and technologically and economically inefficient. The use of 
the assets has been discontinued;
impairment of receivables by EUR 21,260 due to doubts as to their collection.

•

•

•

•

in	EUR 2007 2006 Index

Salaries  9,299,277      8,585,061      108     

Salary compensations  2,377,977      2,341,942      102     

Costs of supplementary pension 
insurance

 550,278      523,598      105     

Other employee receipts, fringe 
benefits, refunds

 1,594,848      2,233,492      71     

Employer’s contributions on all 
employee receipts

 1,974,768      1,983,342      100     

Payroll tax  487,236      639,527      76     

TOTAL 16,284,384 16,306,961 100

in	EUR 2007 2006 Index

Depreciation or 
amortisation

 26,033,695      25,363,926      103     

- intangible fixed assets  99,491      76,064      131     

- buildings  4,272,231      4,232,065      101     

- equipment and spare parts  21,661,973      21,055,797      103     

Revaluation operating 
expenses

 3,238,205      1,853,155      175     

- property, plant and 
equipment

 3,216,945      1,843,257      175     

- receivables  21,260      9,898      215     

TOTAL 29,271,900 27,217,081 108
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Note 7

Other operating expenses                         EUR 10,876,218

The predominant part of charges refers to the liability arising from the payment of the building site fee.

Environment protection expenditure includes emissions coupon costs of EUR 7,061,099.54. Accord-
ing to estimates, the company produced 4,908,817 tons of CO2 during the year. In terms of costs, this 
amounts to 4,190,587 coupons, each costing 1 euro. The remainder represents the costs of insuffi-
cient emission coupons for 2007.

Note 8

Financial revenue                   EUR 103,673

Revenue from loans includes interest on time deposits with commercial banks.

Note 9

Financial expenses                EUR 3,212,076

The predominant part of financial liabilities is comprised of interest expenses in the amount of 
EUR 3,210,844 arising from long-term loans. Interest has been accounted for in accordance with a 
contract entered into by the lender and the borrower.  

Note 10                       

Taxes                   EUR -252,373

In compliance with the Corporate Income Tax Act, the company prepared a corporate income tax statement 
for the period 1 January 2007 to 31 December 2007. The company determined that thanks to the utilisation 
of tax relief and retained tax losses, a basis for the payment of the corporate income tax did not exist.

Deferred tax assets have been created on the basis of the amount of long-term provisions for jubilee 
benefits and termination benefits on retirement. The reversal of deferred tax assets in the amount of 
EUR 252,373 is the result of the reversal of long-term provisions for jubilee and termination benefits.

in	EUR 2007 2006 Index

Charges unrelated to 
labour costs or other costs

 2,785,524      2,523,912      110     

Environment protection 
expenditure

 7,997,966      1,857,507      431     

Provisions for termination 
and jubilee benefits

 91,879     

Other costs  92,728      97,192      95     

TOTAL 10,876,218 4,570,490 238

in	EUR 2007 2006 Index

Revenue from intersests  317,660     

Revenue from loans granted  85,227      128,757      66     

Revenue from operating 
recivables

 18,446      38,316      48     

TOTAL 103,673 484,733 21

in	EUR 2007 2006 Index

Expenses for financial 
liabilities

 3,211,189      3,344,386      96     

Expenses for operating 
liabilities

 887      2,946      30     

TOTAL 3,212,076 3,347,332 96

in	EUR 2007 2006 Index

Deferred taxes (252,373) (3,176)  7,946     

79



7.6.3 Cash flow statement

The cash flow statement for 2007 has been prepared in accordance with SAS 26 Format I and com-
prises all cash receipts and disbursements in the period 1 January to 31 December 2007. 

Cash broken down by subgroups is as follows:

The cash flow statement shows that net cash from operating activities totalled EUR 38,169,837. The 
entire amount indicated was used in connection with expenses arising from investing and financing 
activities. The bulk of all receipts represents operating activities (68.07%), followed by receipts from 
financing activities (31.8%), and receipts from investing activities (only 0.14%). In 2007 the com-
pany took out an additional loan of EUR 42,500,000 and increased its capital by EUR 20,864,000. 

7.6.4 Statement of changes in equity

The statement of changes in equity has been prepared according to Format II, in the form of a com-
posite spreadsheet which presents changes in all equity components. 
The composite spreadsheet containing changes in equity shows:

the balance of equity as at 01/01/2007 EUR 197,572,681      

 movements to equity  additional paid-in capital in the amount of EUR 20,864,000   
     net profit or loss for the year in the amount of EUR 10,391,053  

 movements within equity  allocation of net profit for the year in the amount of EUR 685,651 to 
     offset retained net loss       

     set aside legal reserves in the amount of EUR 485,270   
  
     other revenue reserves in the amount of EUR 4,610,066   
 
the balance of equity as at 31/12/2007  EUR 228,827,734

Presentation of accumulated profit/loss: 

7.7 Other disclosures

7.7.1 Information about specific employee categories

Information about management, the Supervisory Board and employees with contracts that are not subject to the tariff 
part of the collective labour agreement

Receipts

•

•

•

•

•

•

in	EUR 2007 2006

Cash flows from operating activities 38,169,837 34,739,996

Cash flows from investing activities (81,292,878) (13,112,206)

Cash flows from financing activities 43,120,242 (21,660,424)

in	EUR

Net profit or loss for the period  10,391,053     

- retained net loss  685,651     

- creation of legal reserves from profit  485,270     

- increase in other revenue reserves  4,610,066     

= Accumulated profit 4,610,066

in	EUR 2007 2006

Management of the company  107,925      96,808     

Employees with contracts not subject to the tariff part of 
the collective agreement

 471,717      517,076     

Members of the Supervisory Board  19,817      1,867     
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Receipts of the company’s management and other employees with individual contracts include:

gross receipts contained in the notice for income tax returns,
other receipts,
premiums paid for voluntary additional pension insurance.

The receipts of the members of the Supervisory Board include gross amounts of attendance fees 
increased by business travel cost.

Operating receivables 

7.7.2 Balance sheet by business segments 

7.7.3 Income statement by business segments

Note: In the income statement presented by business segments, internal sales have been included in revenue and expenses.

•
•
•

in	EUR Interest	rate Repayment	date 2007 2006

Other employees with contracts not 
subject to the tariff part of the 
collective agreement

Value of units used for 
determining apartment value

2020  26,065      28,272     

Total	TEŠ Electricity	
production	BS

Steam	and	hot	
water	supply	

BS

Canteen	BS Social	standard	
BS

TOTAL	ASSETS 365,064,846 361,058,674 2,817,438 414,894 773,840

Long-term assets 300,938,868 299,001,339 1,030,725 390,650 516,154

Current assets 47,587,976 45,519,333 1,786,713 24,244 257,686

Accrued revenue and deferred 
costs

16,538,002 16,538,002

TOTAL	EQUITY	AND	LIABILITIES 365,064,846 358,775,646 3,730,710 622,975 1,935,515

Equity 228,827,734 223,917,243 2,542,886 464,574 1,903,031

Provisions and long-term accrued 
costs and deferred revenue

10,498,468 10,498,468

Long-term liabilities 55,761,670 55,745,190 16,480

Short-term liabilities 66,408,745 65,046,516 1,187,824 158,401 16,004

Accrued costs and deferred revenue 3,568,229 3,568,229

RECEIVABLES/LIABILITIES	TO	
BUSINESS	SEGMENTS

2,283,028 -913,272 -208,081 -1,161,675

Total	TEŠ TOTAL Electricity	
production	BS

Steam	and	hot	
water	supply	

BS

Canteen	BS Social	standard	
BS

TOTAL	REVENUE 215,788,971 210,175,730 4,217,785 995,423 400,033
Costs of materials 129,862,172 125,929,847 3,372,895 555,993 3,437
Costs of services 14,919,117 14,627,499 193,791 45,551 52,276
Labour costs 16,284,384 15,669,577 270,143 341,147 3,517
Write-downs in value 29,271,900 28,922,001 236,018 48,452 65,429
Other operating expenses 10,876,218 10,792,466 83,547 87 118
Financial expenses 3,212,076 3,211,564 0 0 512
Other expenses, costs of 
internal services and labour

719,678 713,571 4,453 961 693

TOTAL	EXPENSES 205,145,545 199,866,525 4,160,847 992,191 125,982
TOTAL	PROFIT	OR	LOSS 10,643,426 10,309,205 56,938 3,232 274,051
Deferred taxes (252,373) (252,373)

NET	PROFIT	OR	LOSS	FOR	THE	
PERIOD

10,391,053 10,056,832 56,938 3,232 274,051
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